
AGENDA 
NELSON COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

July 14, 2015 
THE REGULAR MEETING CONVENES AT 2:00 P.M.  

IN THE GENERAL DISTRICT COURTROOM  
AT THE COURTHOUSE IN LOVINGSTON 

I. Call to Order 
A. Moment of Silence 
B. Pledge of Allegiance 

II. Resolution Recognizing the Service of the Honorable Kenneth W. Farrar (R2015-52)

III. Consent Agenda
A. Resolution – R2015-53 Minutes for Approval 
B. Resolution – R2015-54 FY16 Budget Amendment  
C. Resolution – R2015-55 Blue Ridge Tunnel, No Trespassing 
D. Resolution – R2015-56 Appointment of Agricultural and Forestal District Program 

Administrator 
E. Resolution – R2015-62 Consent for Offers in Compromise- Local Taxes  

IV. Public Comments and Presentations
A. Public Comments 
B. VDOT Report 

1. Discontinuance of a Portion of Route 641 Dutch Creek Lane (R2015-57)

V. New Business/ Unfinished Business 
A. Courthouse Project Phase II, Authorization to Issue Invitation to Bid and Proceed with 

Application to Virginia Resources Authority for Project Funding (R2015-58) 
B. Department of Conservation & Recreation Grant Application (R2015-59) 
C. Gladstone Fire & Rescue Services Interest Free Loan Application (R2015-60) 

VI. Reports, Appointments, Directives, and Correspondence
A. Reports 

1. County Administrator’s Report
2. Board Reports

B. Appointments  
C. Correspondence 

1. R. Browne –Rockfish Collection Site
2. R. Matuszak – Fence in Law

D. Directives 

VII. Adjourn and Reconvene for Evening Session



 2

 
 
 
 
 

EVENING SESSION 
 

7:00 P.M. – NELSON COUNTY COURTHOUSE 
 

I. Call to Order 
 
II. Public Comments 
 

III. Public Hearings and Presentations 
 

      A.    Public Hearing: Special Use Permit #2015-03 – “Dance Hall” / Jose & Elpidia  
Gaona  Consideration of a Special Use Permit application to operate a “dance hall” pursuant to 
§8-1-3a of the Zoning Ordinance. Specifically, the applicant wishes to operate a dance hall on 
Friday nights and Saturday nights, remaining in operation until 2:00AM the following 
morning(s). The requested dance hall would be co-located with “La Michoacana Authentic 
Mexican Taqueria & Restaurant” (which is a permissible by-right use, and which received 
County zoning approval via Minor Site Plan #2015-03 on May 27, 2015). The subject property 
is owned by Mr. Joe Lee McClellan and is located in Lovingston at 37 Tanbark Place; it is 
further identified as Tax Map Parcels #58B-A-36 and #58B-A-37 which are zoned Business (B-
1). 

 
IV. Other Business (As May Be Presented) 

 
V. Adjournment  

 
 



RESOLUTION R2015-52 
NELSON COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

RESOLUTION RECOGNIZING THE HONORABLE KENNETH W. FARRAR 
July 01, 1999 – July 31, 2015 

WHEREAS, on July 31, 2015, the Honorable Kenneth W. Farrar officially retires from service 
as Judge of the Juvenile and Domestic Relations District Court of the Twenty-fourth Judicial 
District of Virginia; and 

WHEREAS, Judge Farrar is a life-long resident of Virginia, a graduate of Amherst County High 
School (1966), earned his Bachelor of Science degrees in Business Management and Business 
Finance from Virginia Polytechnic Institute and State University (1970) and received his Juris 
Doctorate Degree from the University of Baltimore School of Law (1974); and 

WHEREAS, Judge Farrar practiced law for twenty-five years beginning his career in March, 
1974 in Altavista, Virginia and opening a practice in Lovingston, Virginia in October, 1975; he 
is a member of the Virginia State Bar and of the Criminal Law, Domestic Relations and Judicial 
Sections of the Virginia Bar Association; is  a member and past president of the Amherst/Nelson 
Bar Association; he served as chief judge of the Twenty-Fourth Judicial District from 2004 - 
2006; he participated in the  Juvenile Detention Alternatives Initiative in the Lynchburg Juvenile 
and Domestic Relations District Court; he implemented the Nelson Juvenile and Domestic 
Relations Best Practice Court in the area of foster care and adoption in 2010; he is a member of 
the National Council of Juvenile and Family Court Judges where he served on the Permanency 
Planning for Children and the Family Violence & Domestic Relations Committees; he serves on 
the Executive Committee of the Judicial Conference of Virginia for District Court Judges and on 
the Virginia Council of Juvenile and Domestic Relations District Court Judges Schools and 
Courts Committee; and 

WHEREAS, Judge Farrar was appointed to the Juvenile and Domestic Relations District Court 
bench on July 01, 1999 and over the past sixteen years Judge Farrar has presided over numerous 
cases involving children and families where he has exhibited his knowledge, dedication and 
professionalism, all of which will be greatly missed; and 

WHEREAS, Judge Farrar is an active and important part of his community and profession as a 
member of Mineral Springs Baptist Church in Gladstone, 4-H Club adult leader, Dixie Youth T-
Ball Coach, Boy Scout Fundraising Drive co-sponsor for Nelson County and member/director of 
the Nelson County Chamber of Commerce; and 

II



WHEREAS, it is fitting and proper that the Nelson County Board of Supervisors recognizes the 
Honorable Kenneth W. Farrar for his many years of service and commitment to the citizens of 
Nelson County and Virginia, and to congratulate him on his well-deserved retirement as Judge, 
with best wishes for many years of happiness and contentment, 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE NELSON COUNTY BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS, that The Board of Supervisors does hereby go on record as recognizing the 
Honorable Kenneth W. Farrar on his retirement from service from the Juvenile and Domestic 
Relations District Court of the Twenty-fourth Judicial District of Virginia. 

Adopted: July 14, 2015 Attest: _______________________, Clerk 
Nelson County Board Of Supervisors 



RESOLUTION R2015-53 
NELSON COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES 
(June 9, 2015) 

RESOLVED, by the Nelson County Board of Supervisors that the minutes of said Board 
meetings conducted on June 9, 2015 be and hereby are approved and authorized for entry 
into the official record of the Board of Supervisors meetings. 

Approved: July 14, 2015 Attest:_________________________, Clerk 
Nelson County Board of Supervisors  

III A



June 9, 2015 

1 

Virginia:  

AT A REGULAR MEETING of the Nelson County Board of Supervisors at 2:00 p.m. in the General 
District Courtroom located on the third floor of the Nelson County Courthouse, in Lovingston Virginia. 

Present:   Constance Brennan, Central District Supervisor  
Allen M. Hale, East District Supervisor – Vice Chair 
Thomas H. Bruguiere, Jr. West District Supervisor 
Larry D. Saunders, South District Supervisor – Chair  
Thomas D. Harvey, North District Supervisor  
Stephen A. Carter, County Administrator 
Candice W. McGarry, Administrative Assistant/Deputy Clerk 
Debra K. McCann, Director of Finance and Human Resources 
Tim Padalino, Director of Planning and Zoning 
Angela Johnson, Treasurer 

Absent:  None 

I. Call to Order 

Mr. Saunders called the meeting to order at 2:05 PM, with four (4) Supervisors present to establish a 
quorum and Mr. Bruguiere joining the meeting at 2:07 PM. 

A. Moment of Silence 
B. Pledge of Allegiance – Mr. Hale led the pledge of Allegiance 

II. Consent Agenda

Ms. Brennan noted a correction to the spelling of Sarah Ray’s last name in the April Minutes on page six 
(6) and Ms. McGarry acknowledged the correction. 

Mr. Hale then moved to approve the consent agenda including the minutes of the previous two meetings, 
the Commissioner of Revenue Refunds, and FY15 Budget Amendment. Ms. Brennan seconded the 
motion and there being no further discussion, Supervisors voted unanimously (5-0) by roll call vote to 
approve the motion and the following resolutions were adopted: 

A. Resolution – R2015-43 Minutes for Approval 

RESOLUTION R2015-43 
NELSON COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES 
(April 14, 2015 & May 12, 2015) 



June 9, 2015 
 

2 
 

RESOLVED, by the Nelson County Board of Supervisors that the minutes of said Board meetings 
conducted on April 14, 2015 & May 12, 2015 be and hereby are approved and authorized for entry into 
the official record of the Board of Supervisors meetings. 
 

B. Resolution – R2015-44 COR Refunds 
 

RESOLUTION R2015-44                    
NELSON COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

APPROVAL OF COMMISSIONER OF REVENUE REFUNDS 
 
RESOLVED, by the Nelson County Board of Supervisors that the following refunds, as certified by the 
Nelson County Commissioner of Revenue and County Attorney pursuant to §58.1-3981 of the Code of 
Virginia, be and hereby are approved for payment. 
 
 
Amount  Category    Payee 
 
$2,147.04  2012-2014 Disabled Veteran  Mr. Raymond M. Miller, Jr. 
   Exemption    964 Horseshoe Rd. 
        Arrington, VA 22922 
 
$10.80   PP Tax  - Mobile Home  Mr. George E. Trogdon 
        138 Campbell Lane 
        Afton, VA 22920 
 
$1,390.68  2015 RE Tax Disabled Veteran Mr. Dennis G. Kincaid 
   Exemption    3285 Embly’s Gap Rd. 
        Roseland, VA 22967 
 
$198.64  2012-2014 PP Tax Relief  M. Odell Covington 
        158 Mountain Star Dr. 
        Shipman, VA 22971 
 

C. Resolution – R2015-45 FY15 Budget Amendment  
 
    

RESOLUTION R2015-45 
NELSON COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

AMENDMENT OF FISCAL YEAR 2014-2015 BUDGET 
NELSON COUNTY, VA 

June 9, 2015 
       
BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of Nelson County that the Fiscal Year 2014-2015 
Budget be hereby amended as follows:      
      
      



June 9, 2015 
 

3 
 

      
 I.   Appropriation of Funds (General Fund)     
      
      
  Amount Revenue Account (-) Expenditure Account (+)  
   $6,000.00  3-100-001899-0016 4-100-012130-5420  
   $5,000.00  3-100-001899-0016 4-100-012130-5425  
   $11,000.00     
          
 II.  Transfer of Funds (General Fund)     
      
      
  Amount Credit Account (-) Debit Account (+)  
   $6,540.00  4-100-999000-9905 4-100-012040-3002  
   $1,309.00  4-100-999000-9901 4-100-022010-1001  
   $23,980.00  4-100-999000-9901 4-100-032060-1001  
   $4,542.00  4-100-999000-9901 4-100-032060-2001  
   $7,248.00  4-100-999000-9901 4-100-032060-5501  
   $5,000.00  4-100-043040-5415 4-100-032020-5415  
   $48,619.00     
      
 

D. Resolution – R2015-46 FY15-16 Salary Adjustment Resolution 
 

RESOLUTION R2015-46 
NELSON COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

SALARY AND CLASSIFICATION SYSTEM 
FY16 SALARY ADJUSTMENT 

 
BE IT RESOLVED by the Nelson County Board of Supervisors that the local government’s “Salary 
and Classification System” is hereby amended to incorporate the following: 
 
A three percent (3%) salary adjustment shall be hereby authorized for Nelson County personnel (full 
time and regular part-time) employed pursuant to the County’s salary classification and pay plan, 
effective on July 1, 2015.  The three percent (3%) consists of a one half percent (0.5%) cost of living 
adjustment and an increase of one step (2.5%) within the designated grade for each position.  
Additionally, a three percent (3%) salary adjustment shall be authorized for all regular part-time 
employees and all full-time employees, inclusive of the elected/appointed official, employed in a 
Constitutional Office or Office of the Registrar. The three percent (3%) is inclusive of the 2% across-
the-board salary adjustment effective September 1, 2015 for all constitutional officers and their 
Compensation Board funded permanent staff positions and shall be calculated based upon the salary in 
effect on June 30, 2014 (Compensation Board and local supplement).  All other Compensation Board 
salary adjustments shall be calculated pursuant to the governance established for this purpose and 
approved by the Board of Supervisors on November 21, 2006.   
 
 



June 9, 2015 
 

4 
 

Attachment: Fiscal Year 2015-2016 Salary Scale (Full Time & Part-Time) 
                            

III. Public Comments and Presentations 
A. Public Comments 

 
There were no persons wishing to be recognized for public comments. 
 

B. Presentation – NCHS Student GIS Presentation (J. Taggart) 
 
Ms. Brennan noted that she had attended a presentation by students at the High School taught by Ms. 
Lindsey Hill and Jack Taggart was present to do his presentation using GIS for the Board. 
 
Mr. Taggart noted that the Geospatial class at the High School was a college credit course through James 
Madison University and Ms. Lindsey Hill was the professor of the course.  He noted that the students 
learned a program called ArcMap and were then able to choose a project that would benefit the 
community using it.  
 
Mr. Taggart then noted that he and fellow student, Bree Taylor, had used the program to find a solution 
for excessive Fire Department response times in the County. He added that they did this by developing 
maps using the ArcMap program that would tell them how long it would take firefighters to get to 
certain areas. He showed a map of fire districts and stations in the county that showed it divided into 
seven (7) districts covered by nine (9) fire stations. He added this was because there were two (2) 
stations located in the Wintergreen and Lovingston districts. 
 
Mr. Taggart then noted that the ArcMap program took into account the speeds and surfaces of certain 
roads and created a way to get into each district. He noted that the areas of the map were color coded to 
show how many minutes the area was from a fire station. He added that the white areas were in excess of 
twenty (20) minutes of a fire station and that Montebello, Arrington, Lovingston, and Schuyler areas all 
had white areas.  
 
Mr. Taggart then showed dots on the map representing addresses in the white areas and noted that 
Montebello had 161 addresses, with the majority being in the George Washington National Forest and 
that had gravel roads; Arrington had 131 addresses that were twenty minutes from a fire station, 
Lovingston had 26 Addresses that were over 20 minutes away, mostly due to gravel roads, Schuyler had 
311 addresses in Faber and 291 were in the Schuyler area alone. He noted the significance of this as it 
was more than all of the other areas combined.   
 
Mr. Taggart then showed a map that highlighted the Faber Fire Department area and noted that 1,244 
addresses were there and only 60% of them could be reached from that Station within 20 minutes; noting 
that this Department could only cover 50% of its own area. Mr. Taggart then discussed another map of 
the density of these areas that showed pockets of heavy addresses; with the highest number being in the 
heart of Schuyler. 
 
He noted that after seeing this, he and his partner tried to figure out how to help this area the most and 
came up with the solution of establishing a substation to supplement the Faber Fire station in the heart of 
Schuyler. He noted that with this additional station, only 13% of the addresses would be in excess of 20 



June 9, 2015 
 

5 
 

minutes from the Faber station and only 5% would be in excess of 20 minutes from any fire station. He 
then showed a map comparison of shaded areas with and without the new substation in Schuyler. He 
added that establishing this would help in terms of fire suppression, would bring down insurance rates, 
and improve citizens’ peace of mind.  
 
Mr. Taggart then concluded by showing a satellite image of the town of Schuyler and noted that their 
proposed site for a 1 truck substation was at the old Schuyler ball field that was no longer being used.  
 
Mr. Hale noted that the report was eye opening and Mr. Bruguiere asked if there was anyone down there 
to staff the proposed substation as that would be key.  
 
In response to questions regarding ownership of the ball field, Mr. Carter noted it was owned by the 
Schuyler Museum even though as noted by Mr. Taggart, they were not shown as the owner in the GIS 
system. Mr. Taggart added it was still shown in GIS as an unimproved piece of land and that they would 
be presenting this to the Faber Fire Department at their next business meeting.  
 
Ms. Brennan then noted the usefulness of GIS.  
 
Ms. Linsey Hill in attendance noted that she taught the ArcMap program in the first half of the semester 
and the second half of the semester, the students worked on a project. She noted that most students that 
took the class were seniors and that Mr. Taggart was the only junior. She noted that next year, Mr. 
Taggart would be able to act as a teaching assistant for the class and the class was worth three (3) 
college credits. 
 

C. VDOT Report 
 
Mr. Don Austin noted that the Secondary Six Year Plan had been approved the previous month and they 
had seen a small increase in allocations since then.  
 
 

1. Abandonment of a Portion of Route 641 Dutch Creek Lane (R2015-47) 
 
Mr. Austin noted that portions of this route were to be abandoned and discontinued. He added that the 
Board of Supervisors approves the abandonments and the Commonwealth Transportation Board (CTB) 
approves the official discontinuance. Mr. Carter indicated that some clarification was needed on who 
was to send the certified letters to property owners for the discontinuance adding that the Code 
prescribes that it is done by the Board which refers to the CTB. Mr. Austin noted that this would be 
worked out with staff.  He added that the citizen’s concern with the abandonment had been taken care of 
before the meeting.  
 
Ms. Brennan then moved to approve resolution R2015-47 Abandonment of Portions of Routt 641, Dutch 
Creek Lane and Mr. Bruguiere seconded the motion. 
 
Mr. Harvey inquired about the discussion with the concerns that came up and Mr. Carter noted that an 
adjacent property owner was concerned they would be landlocked; he then spoke to Mr. McSwain 
before the meeting and said he was okay and he no longer had the concerns. 
 



June 9, 2015 
 

6 
 

There being no further discussion, Supervisors voted unanimously (5-0) by roll call vote to approve the 
motion and the following resolution was adopted: 
 

                RESOLUTION R2015-47 
NELSON COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS     
ABANDONMENT OF PORTIONS OF ROUTE 641  
                DUTCH CREEK LANE 

 
WHEREAS, the Nelson County Board of Supervisors has received a request to abandon a 
portion of Secondary Route 641 (Dutch Creek Lane) from 1.03 Miles East of Route 29 to 3.57 Miles 
North of Route 640, a distance of 1.48 Miles, and 

 
WHEREAS, the sketch dated June 4, 2015 and VDOT Form AM-4.3 attached and  incorporated 
herein as part of this resolution, defines adjustments required in the Secondary System of State 
highways as a result of this proposed abandonment, and 

 
WHEREAS, a public notice was posted, as prescribed under §33.2-909, Code of Virginia, 
announcing a public hearing to receive comments concerning abandoning the section of road 
described herein from the Secondary System of State Highways; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Commissioner of the Virginia Department of Transportation was provided the 
prescribed notice of this Board's intent to abandon the subject section of road; and 

 
WHEREAS, no public hearing was requested; and 

 
WHEREAS, after considering all evidence available, the Nelson County Board of Supervisors is 
satisfied that no public necessity exists for the continuance of the section of Secondary Route 641 
(Dutch Creek Lane) from 1.03 Miles East of Route 29 (Node C) to 3.57 Miles North of Route 640 
(Node D), a distance of 1.48 Miles, and hereby deems that section of road is no longer necessary as a 
part of the Secondary System of State Highways; 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Nelson County Board of Supervisors this 9th day 
of June, 2015, that this Board abandons the above-described section of road and removes it from the 
Secondary System of State Highways, pursuant to §33.2-909, Code of Virginia; and, 

 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED that a certified copy of this resolution be forwarded to the 
Resident Engineer of the Virginia Department of Transportation. 
 

IV. New Business/ Unfinished Business 
 
Mr. Carter noted that staff had prepared a resolution for all funds and the allocation of local funds for the 
school division. He noted that the funding increase needed by the schools was around $381,000 and this 



June 9, 2015 
 

7 
 

was higher in the presented allocation by about $60,000-80,000. He then asked if the Board wanted to 
leave this in and put it towards capital improvements. 
 
Mr. Bruguiere noted his agreement with putting the extra funds towards capital improvements, however 
Mr. Harvey and Ms. Brennan disagreed, noting they should get the whole amount. Mr. Carter confirmed 
that unless there were other questions, it was ready to proceed as is. 
 
Mr. Saunders then stated that if the Schools said they could operate with $381,000 in additional funds 
then that was what they should get and Mr. Bruguiere reiterated his agreement. 
 
Mr. Hale noted he was confused about the difference. Mr. Carter noted that there was $87,674 more than 
the $381,000 the schools said they needed included in the resolutions presented for adoption and 
appropriation of the budget and if the Board wanted to remove this, they would have to do so. Mr. Hale 
then noted he would leave it as presented. 
 

A. Adoption of the FY15-16 Budget, All Funds (R2015-48) 
 
Following discussion, Mr. Hale moved to approve resolution R2015-48 Adoption of Budget Fiscal Year 
2015-2016 (July 1, 2015-June 30, 2016) and Ms. Brennan seconded the motion and noted a correction to 
the spelling of Board.  
 
There being no further discussion, Supervisors voted unanimously (5-0) by roll call vote to approve the 
motion and the following resolution was adopted: 
 
 

RESOLUTION 2015-48 
NELSON COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

ADOPTION OF BUDGET FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016 
(JULY 1, 2015-JUNE 30, 2016) 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the applicable provisions of Chapter 25, Budgets, Audits and Reports of Title 
15.2 of the Code of Virginia, 1950, the Board of Supervisors of Nelson County, Virginia has prepared a 
budget for informative and fiscal planning purposes only and has also established tax rates, as 
applicable, for Fiscal Year 2015-2016 (July 1, 2015-June 30, 2016); and 
 
WHEREAS, the completed Fiscal Year 2015-2016 Budget is an itemized and classified plan of all 
contemplated expenditures and all estimated revenues and borrowing; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors has published a synopsis of the budget, given notice of a public 
hearing in a newspaper having general circulation in Nelson County and, subsequent thereto, convened a 
public hearing on the Fiscal Year 2015-2016 Budget. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of Nelson County, Virginia 
that the Fiscal Year 2015-2016 Budget be hereby adopted in the total amount (all funds, revenues and 
expenditures) of $77,110,835.   The individual fund totals are denoted as follows:  



June 9, 2015 
 

8 
 

 
Fund                  Budget  
General   $ 36,499,052.00 
VPA     $ 1,949,454 .00 
Debt Service   $ 3,367,281.00 
Capital  $ 898,043.00     
School  $ 26,134,083.00     
Textbook  $ 461,422.00 
Piney River (Operations) $ 218,229.00 
Courthouse Project  $ 7,283,271.00 
Community Dev. Block Grant $     300,000.00 
 

1) The General Fund includes $20,248,990 in local funding transferred to the Broadband Fund 
($150,000), the Reassessment Fund ($100,000), the Community Development Block Grant Fund 
($100,000), the Debt Service Fund ($3,367,281), the Piney River Water & Sewer Fund ($40,000), the 
Courthouse Project Fund ($1,426,225), and the School Fund ($14,640,484 for general operations, 
$235,000 allocated for school nursing, and $190,000 allocated for school buses).  Also included is 
$1,949,454 in local, state, and federal funds transferred to the VPA Fund. 

2) The School Fund includes a transfer of $180,797 to the Textbook Fund. 

BE IT LASTLY RESOLVED, that adoption of the Fiscal Year 2015-2016 Budget shall not be deemed 
to be an appropriation and no expenditures shall be made from said budget until duly appropriated by the 
Board of Supervisors of Nelson County, Virginia. 

 
B. Appropriation of the FY15-16 Budget, All Funds (R2015-49) 

 
Mr. Hale moved to approve resolution R2015-49 Fiscal Year 2015-2016 Appropriation of Funds and 
Mr. Harvey seconded the motion. There being no further discussion, Supervisors voted unanimously (5-
0) by roll call vote to approve the motion and the following resolution was adopted: 
 

RESOLUTION R2015-49 
NELSON COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016 APPROPRIATION OF FUNDS 
 
WHEREAS, the applicable provisions of Chapter 25, Budgets, Audits and Reports of Title 15.2 of the 
Code of Virginia, 1950 require the appropriation of budgeted funds prior to the availability of funds to 
be paid out or become available to be paid out for any contemplated expenditure; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Nelson County Board of Supervisors has heretofore approved the Fiscal Year 2015-
2016 Budget (July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2016) for the local government of Nelson County and its 
component units; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors now proposes to appropriate the funds established in the Fiscal 
Year 2015-2016 Budget; 
 



June 9, 2015 
 

9 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Nelson County Board of Supervisors that the Fiscal 
Year 2015-2016 Budget be hereby appropriated on an annual basis by fund category, as follows: 
 
Fund Revenue(s) (All Sources)  Expenditure(s) 

                                    (All Departments) 
  

General  $  36,499,052.00 $  36,499,052.00  
VPA   $    1,949,454.00 $    1,949,454.00 
Debt Service   $   3, 367,281.00 $    3,367,281.00 
Capital    $       898,043.00 $       898,043.00  
School  $  26,134,083.00 $  26,134,083.00   
Textbook  $       461,422.00 $       461,422.00 
Piney River (Operations)  $       218,229.00 $       218,229.00 
Courthouse Project  $    7,283,271.00 $    7,283,271.00 
Community Dev. Block Grant $       300,000.00 $       300,000.00 
   $  77,110,835.00 $  77,110,835.00 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors that: 
 
1. The General Fund appropriation includes the transfer of $1,949,454 (4-100-093100-9201) to the 

VPA Fund (3-150-004105-0001),  $3,367,281 (4-100-093100-9204) to the Debt Service Fund (3-
108-004105-0100), $15,065,484 (4-100-093100-9202/Nursing $235,000, 4-100-093100-
9203/Operations $14,640,484, 4-100-093100-9205/Buses $190,000) to the School Fund (3-205-
004105-0001),  $150,000 (4-100-093100-9114) to the Broadband Fund (3-114-004105-0100), 
$100,000 (4-100-093100-9101) to the Reassessment Fund (3-101-004105-0001), $100,000 (4-100-
093100-9503) to the Community Development Block Grant Fund (3-503-004105-0001), $1,426,225 
(4-100-93100-9209) to the Courthouse Project Fund (3-106-003201-0007) and $40,000 (4-100-
093100-9207) to the Piney River Water & Sewer Fund (3-501-004105-0001).  
 
The amounts transferred from the General Fund to the VPA Fund, Debt Service Fund, School Fund, 
Community Development Block Grant Fund, Courthouse Project Fund and Piney River Water & 
Sewer Fund are also included in the total appropriation for each of these funds. 

 
2. The Community Development Block Grant Fund appropriation includes the transfer of $300,000 (4-

503-94710-9114) to the Broadband Fund (3-114-004105-0503).  Local match funding of $100,000 
will be transferred at the beginning of the fiscal year with the balance being transferred as grant 
funding is received. 

 
3. The Textbook Fund appropriation includes the allocation of $180,797 from the School Fund. 
 
4. The appropriation of funds to the School Fund, Textbook Fund, and VPA Fund shall be in total and 

not categorically.   
 
5. The appropriation and use of funds within the General, Debt Service, Capital, Piney River Water & 

Sewer, Community Development Block Grant and Courthouse Project Funds shall adhere to the 



June 9, 2015 
 

10 
 

amounts prescribed by the Board of Supervisors for each department therein unless otherwise 
authorized by the Board of Supervisors. 

 
C. Request for Donation of Surplus Property to James River State Park (R2015-50) 

 
Mr. Carter noted that Ms. Harper had conferred with the James River State Park representatives about 
surplusing the bus from the County to them. He added that the bus was being surplused out because it 
needed new tires etc. Ms. Harper suggested that the Park write the Board a letter requesting the bus, staff 
had given the Board information on it, and the resolution had been prepared. He added that the State 
Code section allowing for the transfer had also been provide and that the Parks and Recreation 
Department only used the bus intermittently. 
 
Ms. Brennan then moved to approve resolution R2015-50 Authorization to Donate Surplus Property 
(Bus) to James River State Park and Mr. Bruguiere seconded the motion. 
 
Mr. Carter then confirmed for Mr. Bruguiere that the State Park was responsible for picking up the bus. 
 
There being no further discussion, Supervisors voted unanimously (5-0) by roll call vote to approve the 
motion and the following resolution was adopted: 
 

RESOLUTION R2015-50 
NELSON COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

AUTHORIZATION TO DONATE SURPLUS PROPERTY (BUS) 
 TO JAMES RIVER STATE PARK 

 
WHEREAS, the Nelson County Parks and Recreation Department has a twenty-four passenger bus that 
is considered surplus property; and 
 
WHEREAS, the James River State Park, being an entity of the Commonwealth of Virginia has 
requested the donation of said bus for their use; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Code of Virginia 1950 as amended, § 15.2953 (C) provides that “Any locality may 
make gifts and donations of personal property and may deliver such gifts and donations to another 
governmental entity in or outside of the Commonwealth within the United States.”, 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Nelson County Board of Supervisors that pursuant 
to the Code of Virginia 1950 as amended, § 15.2953 (C), the requested donation of the Parks and 
Recreation Department surplus property, known as the twenty-four passenger bus, to the James River 
State Park is hereby authorized. 
 

D. Proposed Zoning Ordinance Amendment, Definitions: “Brewery” & “Farm 
Brewery, Limited” (R2015-51) 

 
Mr. Padalino noted the current “Brewery” definition was “a facility for the production of beer” and that 
an existing business in the County called Barefoot Bucha produced a fermented tea and wished to 



June 9, 2015 
 

11 
 

expand within the County. He then noted that to remedy Barfoot Bucha’s exclusion, staff proposed to 
amend the “Brewery” and “Farm Brewery, Limited” definitions as follows: 
 
 
Brewery: A facility for the production of beer or other fermented beverages. 

 
Farm Brewery, Limited: A brewery that manufactures no more than 15,000 barrels of 
beer brewed beverages per calendar year, provided that (i) the brewery is located on a farm owned or 
leased by such brewery or its owner and (ii) agricultural products, including barley, other grains, hops, or 
fruit, used by such brewery in the manufacture of its beer brewed beverages are grown on the farm. The 
on-premises sale, tasting, or consumption of beer brewed beverages during regular business hours within 
the normal course of business of such licensed brewery, the direct sale and shipment of beer brewed 
beverages and the sale and shipment of beer brewed beverages to licensed wholesalers and out-of-state 
purchasers in accordance with law, the storage and warehousing of beer brewed beverages, and the sale 
of beer limited farm brewery-related items that are incidental to the sale of beer brewed beverages are 
permitted. 

Mr. Padalino then noted that owner of Barefoot Bucha, Kate Zuckerman was present to answer questions 
and that these amendments would require referral to the Planning Commission. 
 
Ms. Brennan questioned how many other fermented beverages there were and Mr. Padalino noted he 
was unsure. He added that the current business was treated as a home occupation and their proposed 
expansion would be in an A-1 Agricultural District. He noted that the proposed definition change would 
allow for this business to operate in A-1 as a Limited Farm Brewery. 
 
Mr. Hale then moved to approve resolution R2015-51, Referral of Amendments to Appendix A, Nelson 
County Zoning Ordinance – Definitions of “Brewery” and “Farm Brewery Limited” to the Nelson 
County Planning Commission and Ms. Brennan seconded the motion. 
 
Mr. Bruguiere then inquired if within the parameters of the Farm Brewery Limited definition they would 
have a limit of 15,000 barrels and wouldn’t a brewery have more than that. Mr. Padalino noted that the 
current ones in A-1 were not subject to the barrel limitation as they were grandfathered. 
 
There being no further discussion, Supervisors voted unanimously (5-0) by roll call vote to approve the 
motion and the following resolution was adopted: 
 

RESOLUTION R2015-51 
NELSON COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

REFERRAL OF AMENDMENTS TO APPENDIX A, NELSON COUNTY 
 ZONING ORDINANCE-DEFINITIONS OF “BREWERY” & “FARM BREWERY, LIMITED” 

TO THE NELSON COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

WHEREAS, the Nelson County Board of Supervisors (the Board) has received and reviewed in public 
session conducted on June 9, 2015, a staff report on changes proposed to Appendix A-Zoning (Nelson 
County Zoning Ordinance) of the Code of the County of Nelson, Virginia; and, 
  



June 9, 2015 
 

12 
 

WHEREAS, the staff report proposed changes to the Zoning Ordinance in order to revise the definitions 
of “Brewery” and “Farm Brewery, Limited;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Nelson County Board of Supervisors, pursuant to 
the applicable provisions of Title 15.2 Chapter 22, Planning, Subdivision of Land and Zoning of the 
Code of Virginia, 1950 with specific reference to §15.2-2285 of said Code, that the proposed 
amendments to the Code of Nelson County to revise the definitions of “Brewery” and “Farm Brewery, 
Limited” be referred to the Nelson County Planning Commission for review and development of a report 
on the Commission’s findings and recommendations to the Board, in accordance with §15.2-2285 of the 
Code of Virginia.  
 
 

E. Appeal of Zoning Administrator Denial -Temporary Tower Permit Application 
#2015-01, Verizon Wireless 

 
Mr. Padalino noted that Verizon Wireless wanted to install a permanent Class C tower at this site; 
however the permitting time did not allow for it to happen for LOCKN 2015. He noted that in lieu of 
that, they submitted a temporary tower permit application and the duration met the code limit; however 
they wanted a 120 ft. tower and the Ordinance limited the height to 100 ft.  Mr. Padalino then advised 
that based on this, he had administratively denied the temporary tower permit and hence the submittal of 
the appeal to the Board. He noted that Ed Given and Del wood of LOCKN were present, as was Lori 
Schweller representing Verizon Wireless, to answer questions. 
 
Mr. Carter noted that the narrow question at hand was whether or not the Board was willing to grant 
Verizon Wireless 20 ft. for 60 days. He added that they had now submitted the $500 application fee and 
had paper copies of the site plan. Mr. Carter noted that staff had no objections to it and noted that the 
appeal had to come to the Board because staff was not authorized to approve the height difference 
administratively. Mr. Padalino agreed and noted that Verizon Wireless was not using all 120 ft. of the 
tower.  
 
Mr. Saunders noted he had no objections and Mr. Hale noted that in approving this, the Board was 
saying that the Ordinance specified certain things and they could approve things outside of the scope of 
the ordinance. He then inquired if this would be overall and Mr. Carter noted it would be on a case by 
case basis.  
 
Mr. Bruguiere then inquired as to when the tower would be going up and Mr. Padalino noted he was not 
sure. Mr. Harvey then noted that the application stated it would go up at least four (4) weeks in advance 
of the event. 
 
Mr. Harvey then moved that the Board of Supervisors approve the appeal and application submitted by 
Verizon Wireless for an additional 20 ft. and Ms. Brennan seconded the motion. 
 
Supervisors then asked if doing this would solve Verizon Wireless’s problem from the previous year and 
Mr. Wood of LOCKN noted he hoped so and that the risk of the same problem would be reduced.  
 



June 9, 2015 
 

13 
 

There being no further discussion, Supervisors voted unanimously (5-0) by roll call vote to approve the 
motion. 
 
Mr. Del Wood with LOCKN then noted that the other carriers had the same issue and this was likely to 
be looked at again because their service provision would also require 110 ft. or 120 ft. towers.  Mr. 
Carter noted that would be acceptable if they were permanent towers. 
 
Mr. Bruguiere noted that there were permitted Verizon towers that had not been built in the West 
District. 
 
Ms. Brennan inquired as to whether or not there would be other carriers at LOCKN and Mr. Wood noted 
that there would be. He added that this issue may resurface and T-Mobile was another player. He then 
suggested that the Ordinance be changed to avoid this. Mr. Carter noted that the County could take 
another look at this requirement and noted that staff were not experts on this when it was written. 
 

V. Reports, Appointments, Directives, and Correspondence 
A. Reports 

1. County Administrator’s Report 
 
1. Courthouse Project Phase II:  Design drawings are at 95% completion (approximate).  Architectural 
Partners is endeavoring to complete final design requirements.  County staff is assisting with project bid 
and contract documentation.  Mid July, early August bid is anticipated.  
 
2. Broadband:  A) Local Innovation Grant Project - Completion of the required Environmental 
Review is in process.   Thereafter, a contract with VA-DHCD will be completed and project construction 
can be initiated.  CCTS is working on obtaining required VDOT right of way permits.  A 12-16 week 
construction schedule is projected.  B) VA Technology Planning Initiative – A letter of interest was 
submitted to VA-DHCD on 5-20 to establish the County’s eligibility for $75,000 in CDBG Planning 
Grant funding.  DHCD advised by email on 5-5 that it will announce localities that have been 
determined eligible to submit full grant application with final funding decisions by the Department to be 
announced in late August/early December. 
 
A) Mr. Carter noted that the Environmental Review was the time consuming part and he advised that the 
notices had been advertised etc. and that the County would get under contract once that was concluded 
in early July. 
  
3. BR Tunnel:  Phase 1 Substantial Completion Inspection was completed on May4th with minor punch 
list items to be addressed.  Initial response from VDOT has been received advising that Phase 2 and 
Phase 3 grant funding can be consolidated into a revised Phase 2 to complete entire tunnel restoration 
and trail therein, resulting in Phase 3 encompassing western trail and parking area only (no Tunnel 
rehab).  The consolidation of Phase 2 and 3 (with funding availability at $1.24 million, approximate, 
will, however, require County to provide Phase 3 funding until project contract is completed with VDOT 
after which County disbursements can be reimbursed. 
 
4.  Radio Project: County staff continuing to work to address system coverage issues.  
 



June 9, 2015 
 

14 
 

Mr. Carter noted that there were still some areas where the County was not getting needed 
communication and this was being addressed.  Mr. Harvey added that it needed to be completely fixed as 
it had been going on too long. 
 
5. Lovingston Health Care Center:   Citizens committee has had first meeting.  Two private companies 
are scheduled to tour the Center the week on 6-8.  Region Ten has been requested to conduct negotiation 
meeting County and/or submit purchase proposal.  And, Piedmont Housing Alliance staff also phoned 
on 6-8 expressing interest in touring the Center and a possible re-development partnership.   Outcomes 
TBD. 
Mr. Carter advised that the private company representatives did not show up the previous day and he 
was not sure if the other one came that day or not. He added that they were not there that morning when 
staff went down for the tour. 
 
Mr. Harvey noted that if they could not get this worked out for healthcare, then the Board needed to 
revisit this building for office space to eliminate the rent that was being paid for other spaces. 
 
Mr. Carter then advised that Region Ten would provide their proposal soon. Mr. Hale suggested pursing 
a joint project with Piedmont Housing Alliance and Region Ten. Ms. Brennan noted that they were 
looking at budgetary matters. 
 
6.  Solid Waste – A) Region 2000 Service Authority:  The Authority will conduct a strategic planning 
meeting on 6-17 in Rustburg to long range operational planning.  A subject of potential conflict is the 
Authority’s review of the annual distribution of Excess Revenues to Lynchburg and Campbell County, 
which County staff (Nelson) have questioned the validity of continuing such disbursements. B) DEQ 
Inspection of Transfer Station:  DEQ staff inspected the Transfer Station on 5-19-15 and found no 
violations. C) Tire Amnesty Program:  The County will provide for receipt without charge of up to 25 
tires per household, not exceeding 22” in size, at the Transfer Station on 6-20 and 27.  D) New Roll Off 
Truck:  The new roll off truck is in Roanoke at Cavalier Equipment being equipped with hoist and tarp 
system(s).  A deliver date is pending but anticipated at any time.  E) Gladstone Paving:  The scheduled 
paving date slipped (the contractor did not show due to inclement weather).  Staff has requested another 
date for completion of this work. 
 
A) Mr. Carter further noted that the Authority had purchased Campbell County and Lynchburg City 
assets completely and they were made whole. He added that their operations prior to joining the 
Authority did not throw off a lot of cash and excess revenues should be used to lower tipping fees for 
members. He noted that this amount was approximately $1.3 million disbursed every year.  He added 
that he had spoken to Appomattox about it and would do so again. He reiterated that the primary purpose 
in Nelson joining the Authority was to maintain a low tipping fee. 
 
C) Mr. Hale noted he thought in the past, that each resident could take four (4) tires to the transfer 
station per year and Mr. Carter noted that may have been in an old ordinance and there was a fee for tires 
now. He added that the tires got recycled by a company in the Region 2000 area and the County had to 
pay for them to take them away. 
 
7.  Capital/Maintenance Programs -   A) County:  Roof replacements at the Montreal Village Park 
has been procured but not yet completed.   A contract is pending issuance for replacement of the roofing 



June 9, 2015 
 

15 
 

systems at the new maintenance facility at Callohill Drive.  B) DSS:  Roof replacement and building 
repairs will be completed with work commencing in mid-July.   
 
8. Study Reports – A. Building Inspections (Fee and Enforcement):  Finance and HR and County 
Admin staff (lead work by L. Lovern) are nearing completion of a report on the questions of the 
appropriateness and effectiveness of the current fee structure for local building permits and the 
Department’s ability to pursue enforcement for failure to obtain building permits.  The primary focus of 
the study (which is complete) is the analysis of the current fee structure.  The enforcement component is 
pending consultation with legal staff.  A copy of the preliminary report without the enforcement content 
is included herewith.  In House vs Outsourcing of General Reassessment:  Finance and HR staff (lead 
work by S. Turner and D. McCann) has completed a comparative report on the question of the County’s 
General Reassessment of Real Property being conducted with local staffing or by continuing to use 
private entities.  The report is included herewith.     
 
Both reports can be scheduled for formal Board review, as requested, at either the July or August regular 
sessions. 
 
A) Mr. Carter noted that fees were charged on the estimated cost and this kept up with inflation. He 
noted that some overestimated and some underestimated these, however when staff compared the 
estimates to the assessed values; they compared favorably. He noted that he thought these should remain 
as is per the study findings. He then noted how much percentage-wise the fees covered the cost of the 
department. 
 
Mr. Saunders noted that these rates had not been changed in twenty-nine (29) years. Mr. Carter noted 
that staff had looked at that and thought the reports would be submitted to the Board and the subject 
could be added to a future agenda per Mr. Saunders. 
 
Mr. Bruguiere noted that he did not like using square footage costs and Mr. Carter noted that keeping up 
with that was difficult.  
 
Mr. Saunders noted that he thought a slight increase in fees would be good and would make the 
department more self-supporting. 
 
Mr. Bruguiere suggested that the Board get all of the costs associated with the Building Inspections 
Department and look at it at the next meeting.  Mr. Harvey inquired as to whether or not the report 
included E&S fees as those could be significant. Mr. Carter noted that those fees were paid to the State 
and their primary task was to refer people to get stormwater permits. 
 
Ms. Brennan inquired if there were a lot of people that did not get building permits and Mr. Carter noted 
this was hard to determine but was a small issue and that most people were honest. 
 
Mr. Hale then inquired if one had to get a permit to do remodeling and staff noted that it depended upon 
whether it involved structural, mechanical or electrical work. 
 
 
 
 



June 9, 2015 
 

16 
 

9.  Department Reports:  Included with the 6-9-15 BOS agenda. 
 

2. Board Reports 
 

Mr. Bruguiere and Mr. Harvey had no reports. 
 
Ms. Brennan reported the following: 
 

1. Attended Lovingston Health Care Center Committee meeting and each member was assigned an 
area to investigate. She then asked Mr. Carter to follow up with interested parties and other 
opportunities were being looked at. She added that they had met once and would meet again in 
two (2) weeks. 

 
2. Attended a CCJB meeting and reported that a new Planner had been hired and was on the ball. 

She noted that they were applying for a grant to look at offender reentry; how they could help 
those coming out of jail to reduce recidivism as most were rearrested within thirty (30) days. She 
added that they had a presentation by Martin Kumer from the Regional Jail and were moving 
forward on evidenced base analysis.  

 
3. Attended an informational meeting at Wintergreen and five hundred (500) people attended. She 

noted that the meeting was to inform them of the potential for the ACP to impact them. She 
noted that a new company may not proceed with its development plans if the pipeline comes 
through. She added that another business was on the drawing board in the Valley near Spruce 
Creek that was a $30 Million dollar project and the pipeline would come through it. He indicated 
that he would not do the project if this happened. She noted that there was a discussion of loss of 
property values and there was uncertainty about the ACP affecting sales per the realtors in 
attendance. 

 
Mr. Hale reported that he had concluded his term as Chair of the TJPDC and there would be a new 
appointment next January.  He added that things had improved with the new Director on board and the 
PDC was on sound footing now. He then reported that he was continuing to look for a consulting 
Forester for the Sturt property. 
 
Mr. Saunders reported that he attended the Blue Ridge Trail inspection and noted that it was impressive. 
He added that one could walk down to the first bulkhead now.  
 
Mr. Saunders then reported that there were Courthouse project meetings coming up and this was exciting 
work. He noted he was pleased with the Architect finding ways to cut costs. 
 

1. Appointments  
 
Ms. McGarry reviewed the following information regarding appointments and noted that Mr. Chapin 
Wilson had now indicated that he would like to be reappointed to the Ag Forestal District Advisory 
Committee. She then noted that Ms. Marcia McDuffie’s was the only application received for any of the 
vacancies and she noted Ms. McDuffie’s extensive qualifications provided for the Jefferson Madison 
Regional Library Board seat that had been vacated by Ms. Mary Coy.  
 



June 9, 2015 
 

17 
 

(1) New Vacancies/Expiring 
Seats & New Applicants : 

          

            
Board/Commission Term 

Expiring  
Term & Limit 
Y/N 

Incumbent Re-
appointment 

Applicant 
(Order of 
Pref.) 

            

Local Board of Building 
Code Appeals 

6/30/2016 4 Years/No 
Limit 

Clarence Craig N - Resigned None 

            

JAUNT Board 9/30/2015 3 Years/No 
Limit 

Mercedes Sotura N-Resigned None 

            

JMRL Board of Directors 6/30/2016 4 Years/ 2 
Terms 

Mary Coy N-Resigned Marcia 
McDuffie 

            

Ag & Forestal Dist. Advisory 5/13/2015 4 Years/3 
Terms 

      

            

    Producers Lee Albright (T3) Y-Verbal None 

      Andy Wright (T3) Y None 

      Billy Newman (T1) Y None 

      Susan McSwain 
(T3) 

Y None 

            

    Other 
Landowners 

Dr. Andre 
Derdeyn (T3) 

Y None 

      Chapin Wilson 
(T1) 

Y None 

      Bruce A. Vlk (T2) No Response None 

NC Social Services Board 6/30/2015 4 Years/ 2 
Terms 

Joe Williamson - S 
(T1) 

Y None 

            

      

N.C. Economic Dev. 
Authority 

6/30/2015 4 Years/No 
Limit 

Mark B. Robinette Y None 

      John Bruguiere Y None 

            

N.C. Library Advisory 
Committee 

6/30/2015 4 Years/No 
Limit 

Jane Strauss - C Y None 

            

Region Ten Community 
Services Board 

6/30/2015 3 Years/3 
Terms 

Michael W. Kelley 
(T3)  

NA None 

      Ineligible     

            



June 9, 2015 
 

18 
 

Board of Zoning Appeals 11/9/2018 5 Years/No 
Limit 

John Bradshaw Resigned- 
6/4/15 

Has Not Yet 
Been 
Advertised 

 
Mr. Hale then moved to appoint Ms. McDuffie and all of the incumbents including Chapin Wilson as 
provided on the revised list. Ms. Brennan seconded the motion and Mr. Bruguiere then clarified each 
appointment as presented. 
 
There being no further discussion, Supervisors voted unanimously (5-0) by roll call vote to approve the 
motion.  

C. Correspondence 
 
Mr. Carter referenced the summary of additional items that had been forwarded to the Board for 
potential discussion and the following items were discussed: 
 

1. Wild Wolf Brewery – Request for County Sponsorship of a Community Economic Development 
Fund Grant Application to VA-DHCD:  Attached herein above are a letter to Supervisor Brennan 
and a second letter attached thereto (Industry Commitment Letter) submitted by the owner of 
WWB, Mary Wolf, on 5-24 by email to Ms. Brennan, who subsequently forwarded this 
document to Supervisor Saunders (as BOS Chair).   The intent of WWB’s letters is to seek the 
Board’s authorization for the County to submit a grant request to VA-DHCD for funding through 
the Department’s Community Economic Development Fund Grants Program to enable WWB to 
connect to the Aqua VA sewage treatment plant (STP) located in the Stoney Creek subdivision of 
Wintergreen.  The connection to the STP is understood to enable WWB to address wastewater 
system compliance issues with VDH.    The CEDs grant program is one that County staff do not 
have past experience with.  It is an open submission program with applications or letters of 
proposal (followed by a full application if DHCD determines there is eligibility for grant 
funding) due by not later than 9-30-15.   The information submitted by WWB stipulates a 
$250,000 grant request, including commitment of the County to the 255 local match requirement 
(staff discussed the local grant match with WWB’s owner on 6-3 and suggested that WWB 
would likely be required to provide the local match if the Board consented to the County’s 
sponsorship of a grant proposal to DHCD – TBD by the Board).   Staff has begun review of the 
grant program criteria and has a request into DHCD staff to confer with them on the program 
criteria to insure a proposal from the County on behalf of WWB meets the program criteria. 
 
 

Mr. Saunders noted correspondence with Mary Wolf of Wild Wolf Brewery (WWB) and the discussion 
with staff on the issue. 
 
Mr. Carter advised that he had consulted with WWB on the business’s difficulty with the demand on the 
current septic system and that they were working with Virginia Department of Health to find an 
appropriate solution to their problem. He added that WWB had requested that the County look into a 
grant application that could help them with this.  
 
He then explained that the Department of Housing and Community Development (DHCD) had a 
program that the County could apply for and it was open submission. He noted that the program had a 
community economic development component and that they also had a program that was applied for in 



June 9, 2015 
 

19 
 

March, which was a smaller component of the overall program. He noted that if the Board was 
amenable, the County would have to submit a letter of interest, that Ms. Wolf had written, that would be 
uploaded to them and they would evaluate it and decide if the County could submit a complete 
application based upon their criteria.  He noted that the County would have to do two public hearings 
and an Environmental Review as was done for the Broadband grant. He noted that the criteria for 
eligibility provided that WWB create or retain jobs and they would have to pay 1.5 times minimum 
wage to new employees, etc. He added that the potential for the County to assist them was there; 
however it entailed the application process, coordinating with DHCD and the administrative process. He 
noted that he had spoken with DHCD and they had not discouraged it. He noted that this would be a first 
for the County and the application would script it as assistance to the Route 151 corridor.  
 
Mr. Bruguiere noted he thought this should be done for anyone along the path of the extension given the 
history of health problems from sewage in shallow wells. He noted this would then help more than one 
person and he thought it was a health issue that should be pursued for WWB and others. 
 
Mr. Carter noted that there was a question of funding and a 25% local match involved. He added that 
WWB had requested that the Board consider that she borrow the local match and then it be refunded to 
her through tax abatements and he had suggested that this be provided by her, not the County. He noted 
that the cost of the project was also under review and that they had a cost estimate of $250,000 from 
Aqua Virginia and that this was being looked at more closely. Mr. Carter reiterated that the County 
would be responsible for procurement and administrative things etc. and Ms. Wolf would be responsible 
for meeting the criteria of the grant outcomes. 
 
In discussing the proposed system, Mr. Saunders noted that this would be a force main with grinder 
pumps and they would be required to have a pump station that others could hook into. He noted that the 
groundwater was an issue there because of an old riverbed and this would also help the residential area 
as well.  
 
Mr. Carter then supposed that they could investigate putting waterlines in as well and there was also the 
question of whether or not they could add sewer lines to the ditch the County was doing the broadband 
fiber in. He noted this was being looked into.  
 
Mr. Carter reiterated that the grant program had three criteria: Distressed, transitional (Nelson), and 
competitive.  He noted that the business would have to adhere to criteria related to jobs created, 
investment, and employee benefits. 
 
Mr. Harvey then noted his confusion and that assuming the Authority or County owned the new grant 
funded system and the new owners of the Valley system would have to make improvements; he 
questioned whether or not WWB would have worked with them on this.  
 
Ms. Brennan asked whether or not they would be required to connect anyone that wanted to connect and 
Mr. Carter noted they would not because it would be a grant that would facilitate connection for the 
company. He added that the extension would go to WWB and Aqua Virginia could extend it further if 
they wanted. He noted that Aqua Virginia had a permit to operate and did analysis of how much they 
could discharge and once they were at 80% of their capacity, they had to give DEQ a plan to address 
this.  



June 9, 2015 
 

20 
 

 
Mr. Harvey noted that most companies would not run sewer without water because it was the only way 
they could control the customer to pay the bill. Mr. Hale then expressed concern regarding the hurdles to 
be overcome. 
 
Mr. Carter noted that there were hurdles that would be incumbent upon the business and that these funds 
would be a grant. He noted that what VDH was requiring was beyond WWB’s financial ability. 
 
Mr. Carter advised that the grant application deadline was 9/30/15 so staff had time to study it. He added 
that the work to do for the Letter of Interest was not overwhelming; however it was what was done after 
that, that would be.  
 
Mr. Harvey noted that if water and sewer were run, then that changed what could happen in that area of 
the county and it would become all business. Mr. Carter advised that the area was mixed use.  
 
Mr. Bruguiere suggested that they have Aqua Virginia submit a letter that stated that they had the 
capacity and how they would extend it. Mr. Carter noted he thought that they would have looked at that 
because they had provided WWB with the plans. 
 
Mr. Harvey stated he thought it would adversely affect the residents in the area and cited Lake 
Monticello as an example. Mr. Carter noted that it was an opportunity to discuss.  
 
Ms. Mary Wolf of WWB in attendance addressed the Board and noted that Aqua Virginia had evaluated 
their operation, had developed plans, and had submitted them to VDOT for review. She noted that the 
sale of the Valley system was not complete yet and the SCC was still looking at it; however she thought 
they would close this month. 
 
She then noted that in terms of the grant local match; this was potentially a huge number if they went 
with the Aqua Virginia numbers and it could be less than that. She added that it could be $20,000 or 
$67,000 and she noted she was willing to pay that percentage.  She added that she would like to pursue 
the grant or would like for the County to allow her to put a sewer line in with the fiber. She added that 
she did not have $4,000,000 dollars do it. She noted that per the VDH, she had one year to get connected 
to sewer or put in 15,000 square feet of drain field which she did not have. 
 
Mr. Carter further explained that with the grant, the County would be responsible to do procurement so 
the County would be vetting a design and incurring the costs to put the project out to bid. He added that 
the County would not know if the projected costs were realistic or not. 
 
Mr. Saunders advised that if they put in a 2 inch force main they would have overhead costs; however 
they would not be $100/ft. and he thought $10-$12 dollars per foot was a good estimate. He added that 
he had installed a gravity line for $180,000 in Forest and he could not see that this project would be that 
expensive.  
 
Mr. Hale noted he would be surprised if they could use the same trench with fiber optic cable. Mr. Carter 
noted that a force main was a 2 inch line in Piney River and there would have to be separation between 
water and sewer and the fiber line.  



June 9, 2015 
 

21 
 

 
Mr. Hale then suggested that they study the matter and Ms. Brennan noted she thought they should look 
into it for sure, and it would be a huge advantage to Aqua Virginia. She added they should move forward 
with looking at it even though it was a big project.  
 
Mr. Carter then advised the Board that staff to date had focused on looking at the grant criteria and 
analyzing the likelihood of success.  Mr. Hale then noted that his feeling was that WWB or Aqua 
Virginia should address all of the grant criteria and how that would be accomplished; noting it was not 
the job of the County to do this.  
 
Mr. Carter noted that staff would preliminarily work with WWB on this, however, eventually, WWB 
would have to sign an agreement that would bind them to the criteria. He reiterated that a letter of 
interest would be submitted and then DHCD would look at its funding available and evaluate if the 
project met the criteria and if so, then they would tell the County what it would have to do to get under 
contract. 
 
Ms. Brennan then asked if it would make a difference if water was a component of the project and Mr. 
Carter noted potentially it would but the primary objective was job creation or retention. 
 
Ms. Wolf noted that WWB could not stay there without sewer because they could not accommodate the 
seats they had now. She added that they had forty-three (43) jobs and she did not want to leave Nelson. 
She added that WWB did not have the money or the land to expand the drain field even though the land 
did perk. 
 
Mr. Carter then noted that the letter of interest to DHCD would be background on what would be 
accomplished and would meet their criteria as a first step. He added that DHCD could come back and 
say that the project was not worthy of proceeding. 
 
Mr. Bruguiere noted he thought staff should start the process and he then moved that staff start the 
process of applying for the DHCD grant through the initial phases and Ms. Brennan seconded the 
motion. 
 
Mr. Hale noted he thought that the burden of preparing this should be borne by WWB or Aqua Virginia. 
Mr. Bruguiere agreed and noted that they would submit what was needed to the County and if it were 
not enough then it would stop. Ms. Brennan agreed and noted that they would have to provide this to the 
County because staff did not have the information. Mr. Carter noted that staff would have to do some of 
the work and he thought it would be helpful for the County to help WWB. Mr. Bruguiere reiterated that 
he thought this was the County’s business due to the health implications.  
 
There being no further discussion, Supervisors voted (3-2) by roll call vote to approve the motion with 
Mr. Hale and Mr. Harvey voting No. 
 
Introduced: Treasurer Email Regarding Staffing: 
 
Ms. Angela Johnson, Treasurer addressed the Board and noted that one of her four deputies found 
another job and her separation date would be June 18, 2015. She noted that she wanted to keep who was 



June 9, 2015 
 

22 
 

left and give them a reason to stay. She noted to that end, she was asking the Board to do away with her 
fourth position and allow her to use the savings from this to more highly compensate two of the lower 
paid Deputies. She related that their current salaries were below the National Poverty level for family of 
four and she asked the Board to think about this. She noted that she was entertaining the idea of 
increasing their annual pay by $4,800 per employee which would still provide an overall savings of 
$19,000 if this were allocated.  
 
Mr. Carter noted that staff had done some analysis and could present it. 
 
Mr. Hale noted he thought this was a great idea unless six (6) months from now, she asked for the 
position back.  Ms. Johnson noted that with reduced staff, she could give them more compensation to 
keep them and they could handle the job. She noted that she had absolutely thought hard about it and 
noted that her staff was much more efficient, things were more automated now, and she felt strongly that 
they could handle it. She added that her staff was not afraid to do extra work and she did not want this to 
affect taxpayers.  
 
Ms. McCann advised that the State Compensation money would not be lost and the position being 
vacated was a partially funded position. She noted that the Treasurer would move one of the other 
Deputies into the vacated Compensation Board spot and only one Deputy Position would be locally 
funded. She noted that currently two positions were locally funded and the third was not fully funded by 
the state. She added that there were similar positions in the Commissioner of Revenue’s Office and she 
was asked to put forth an alternative proposal that kept the Treasurer’s positions more in line with those; 
which was the staff’s alternate proposal. She noted that this proposal allowed for an annual increase of 
$3,000 per employee and they would get another 3% raise in July.  
 
Mr. Carter noted the proposed salaries after a 26% increase. He added that their primary concern was 
fairness. He noted that the Commissioner’s Office employee had been employed with the County longer 
and the County would still come out ahead if one position was not retained. Mr. Carter then noted that 
the Compensation Board salary scale had been provided by the Treasurer and the thought was to move 
them from DIs to DIIs. He noted he had advised the Treasurer to request whatever she wanted.  
 
Ms. Brennan then asked if the bar would be raised for Commissioner of Revenue employees and Mr. 
Carter noted that this was not under discussion; however the concern was will there be a ripple effect to 
their office. 
 
Ms. McCann noted that staff was asked to do a pay study and all positions would be evaluated; which 
would be an intermediate step in addressing this.  
 
Mr. Carter reiterated that the Board’s consideration was Ms. Johnson’s proposal and the alternate. 
 
Mr. Hale noted he would go along with the Treasurer’s request; however it seemed that given the 
timeframe, the 3% should not be given on the new salary. Ms. McCann noted she was not sure it could 
work that way because for Compensation Board purposes, she would want to move them as soon as 
possible so that funding was not lost in the last part of June. She added that they could approve the 
annual increase of $4,800 noting it would include the 3% raise.  
 



June 9, 2015 
 

23 
 

Ms. Johnson noted that if the Board did not agree to her proposal, she would have to decide who to 
move up.  
 
Following discussion, Mr. Harvey moved to approve the Treasurer’s request and Mr. Hale seconded the 
motion. There being no further discussion, Supervisors voted unanimously (5-0) by roll call vote to 
approve the motion. 
 
 

2. Blue Mountain Barrel House – Request for Refund of NCSA Connection Fee:    Attached herein 
above is a May 26th email message from the owner of BMBH to Supervisors Saunders and 
Harvey.   The content of the message is to seek the County’s assistance with reimbursing BMBH 
for the $32,000 connection fee expense to the Nelson County Service Authority for installation of 
a new 2” water line to serve he business (the email also includes the possible use of a 3” line 
instead of a 2” line with the connection fee for the 3” service being $64,000).   Staff has 
previously responded to an inquiry from Mr. Harvey on this subject to provide background and 
to recommend that BMBH be required to provide financial information to the County to provide 
for verification that the business actually needs such financial assistance, if it were to provided, 
from the County. 

 
 
Mr. Carter noted that request from Blue Mountain Barrel House had come through the Board to staff. He 
reiterated that connection fees come back to the County to pay for the debt obligation related to the 
Lovingston system and that this money was the County's not the Service Authority’s. He then noted the 
previous tax abatement grant and refund of connection fees agreement expiring in 2015.  
 
Mr. Harvey noted he had spoken to George Miller at NCSA and asked if they could upgrade from their 
existing 1 inch line to a 3 inch line and pay the difference. Mr. Carter noted that Jennifer of NCSA said 
that they could not do that, it would be a separate service and metered as such. He added that it would be 
an individual service that required an individual meter. 
 
Mr. Hale noted that they would be adding onto the existing building, not building a new building. Mr. 
Bruguiere added that it was an impediment to business to pay another connection fee and Mr. Hale 
confirmed that a new line would go in and a new meter. Mr. Harvey added that the cost associated with 
this size of line was $32,000. Mr. Carter clarified that this was the connection fee and not the cost for the 
installation.  
 
Mr. Bruguiere noted that the Service Authority would make money off of the increased water usage. Mr. 
Carter then explained that connection fees were generally for one to buy their part of the system capacity 
and to expand in the future; however this was not happening because the connection fees were coming to 
the County. 
 
Mr. Saunders asked if the Board was obligated to do this noting that the business was profitable and the 
Board had done this once already. He added that he thought they should show that they could not afford 
the connection fee before it was waived. Mr. Harvey disagreed and noted he did not think their financials 
should be considered since they were bringing in jobs by expanding. Mr. Hale added that they noted four 
new jobs due to the planned expansion.  
 



June 9, 2015 
 

24 
 

It was then noted that the refund would have to go through the EDA. 
 
Mr. Saunders noted that the Service Authority’s fees were out of line with surrounding areas and the 
County would have more business if these were lower. Ms. Brennan noted she was in favor of granting 
the refund and Mr. Harvey noted the Service Authority was looking at the connection fees. 
 
Mr. Hale noted that $16,000 was the fee for a 1 inch line and suggested that the Board give them that 
and they split the difference. 
 
Following discussion, the Board agreed by Consensus to defer action on the matter. 
 

 
3.  Gladstone Vol. Fire and Rescue Department – EMS Loan Fund Application:  It is understood 

that GVFRD submitted an up to $60-65,000 application so the NCESC for EMS Loan funding to 
enable the Department to pay for the balance (20%) of the fire vehicle the Department is 
purchasing and has advised that it will pick up on 6-15.   The loan fund application was not 
processed to County staff and we are now endeavoring to obtain the ESC’s confirmation, etc. of 
the loan to enable, per policy, the Board to also approve the loan so that it may be processed and 
available to GVFRD by 6-15 or at such time as the Department takes possession of the vehicle.   
 
 

It was noted that the truck would not be ready until the middle of July now. Mr. Carter advised that the 
interest free loan application had been through the Emergency Services Council but had not been 
approved by the Board. He added that there was sufficient funds in the loan fund to do it.  
 
Supervisors then agreed by Consensus to consider this matter in July and no action was taken. 

 
 

4.  VACO – The Executive Mansion:  Request for County Tree Ornaments:  Please see the herein 
attached memorandum from VACO disseminating a request to local governments to provide a 
“local-artisan made handcrafted ornament for The Executive Mansion’s 2015 Holiday Tree, the 
theme of which is “Celebrating Virginia’s Localities.”  Guidance or input from the Board on how 
to provide for this subject is requested.  Alternatively, the Board can simply direct staff to 
address this subject and it will be done. 

 
Staff noted that the ornament needed to be locally made and Supervisors agreed by Consensus for staff 
to take of its submittal.  

 
5. Sheriff’s Department – Request for Funding Assistance with K-9 Purchase:  The Department is 

requesting a $2,500 contribution from the County to provide funding towards the purchase and 
training of a new K-9, which the Department plans to utilize for drug offense enforcement (see 
attached letter). 

Mr. Carter explained that the current drug dog was retiring when its handler, Bill McDonald retired. He 
noted that the Sheriff’s Department was asking the Board for a $2,500 donation to go towards a new 
canine. 
 



June 9, 2015 
 

25 
 

Mr. Harvey then moved to approve $2,500 for the canine and Mr. Hale seconded the motion. It was 
reiterated that the dog would be used for drug enforcement and there being no further discussion, 
Supervisors voted unanimously (5-0) by roll call vote to approve the motion. 
 

D. Directives 
 
Mr. Bruguiere, Mr. Harvey, and Mr. Saunders had no Directives. 
 
Ms. Brennan: 
 
Ms. Brennan asked if Ms. Kelley’s County car could be painted and after discussion, there was 
consensus not to do this and Supervisors discussed buying a new one or paying her mileage to use her 
car. Mr. Carter noted that she did this sometimes and no action was taken. 
 
Ms. Brennan then asked for staff to ask Dominion for the shape files for all proposed routes. 
 
Ms. Brennan then asked if a private corporation could condemn public land and Mr. Carter noted that in 
the case of Dominion, they could use imminent domain.  
 
Ms. Brennan then asked if the County’s Noise Ordinance would cover noise made by construction from 
the pipeline and Mr. Carter advised that it was probably exempt but he would check. Mr. Harvey added 
that it was hard to violate the Noise Ordinance. 
 
Ms. Brennan then noted that the County should become a zero landfill County; which had been brought 
up by Mr. Hale at some point.  Mr. Carter noted that the County was one and Ms. Brennan indicated she 
would like to see this as a goal in the County’s strategic plan.  
 
Mr. Hale: 
 
Mr. Hale noted that they had met with Woolpert on May 7th regarding the Blue Ridge Tunnel project and 
had asked to find out who the project Engineer was. He added he wanted to know this person’s name 
and contact number and also that of the new Project Manager. He added that he also wanted a new 
estimate that incorporated the entire rehabilitation of the tunnel; noting that they had gotten only Jacobs 
Associate’s portion of that.   
 
Mr. Carter then advised that as an outcome of consolidating the phases, all of that would have to be 
done.  
 
Mr. Hale asked staff to follow up on this and keep him copied on emails. He added he wanted to see 
things happen if the County continued to work with Woolpert; noting they needed to be more 
responsive.  
 
Mr. Carter noted that this may take until they get through consolidation. He noted that VDOT had four 
or five questions that had not been answered and he noted he had reiterated to Woolpert the importance 
of responding to these. 
 



June 9, 2015 

26 

Mr. Hale then noted he thought the fence issue that came up was because the project did not have a 
designated engineer. He added it would now cost $14,000 to fix the fence problem that precluded the 
County from using its part of the lot.  He added that if Woolpert was on their toes, they would have 
addressed this and he noted that they had called Fielder's Choice first before calling the fence company. 
Mr. Carter advised that this would be priced locally. He added that the relocation of the fence was 
essential to having a lay down area for the other phases. 

VI. Adjourn and Reconvene for Evening Session

At 5:05 pm, Mr. Hale moved to adjourn and continue the meeting at 7:00 pm. There was no second and 
Supervisors voted unanimously by voice vote to approve the motion and the meeting adjourned. 

EVENING SESSION 

7:00 P.M. – NELSON COUNTY COURTHOUSE 

I. Call to Order 

Mr. Saunders called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm with all Supervisors present to establish a quorum. 

II. Public Comments

There were no persons wishing to be recognized for public comment. 

III. Public Hearings and Presentations

A. Rezoning #2015-01 Mountain Sports Retail Space / Mr. Joseph B. Kober 
WITHDRAWN BY APPLICANT ON JUNE 5, 2015 

Consideration of an application to rezone two parcels, consisting of 6.06 acres from Residential 
(R-1) to Business (B-1). The subject properties are identified as Tax Map Parcels #22-A-18 
(owned by Claude Malcolm Dodd) and #22-A-19 (owned by Herbert F. Hughes), and are 
located at 2950 Rockfish Valley Highway in Nellysford. Specifically, the applicant wishes to 
rezone the properties to construct an 8,000 square foot “retail store” and accompanying parking 
lot on the subject properties.  

B.    Special Use Permit #2015-02 Halls Family Auto Clinic” / Donald & Cindy 
Hall  

Consideration of a Special Use Permit application seeking approval to operate a “public 
garage” pursuant to §4-1-18a of the Zoning Ordinance. The subject property is identified as 
Tax Map Parcel #6-A-94B, and is located at 47 Mill Lane in Afton. This is a 1.02-acre parcel 
zoned Agricultural (A-1), and is owned by Gary Bryant. 

Mr. Padalino’s staff report, reported the following: 

The Department of Planning & Zoning received an application from Mrs. Cindy Hall on March 26th, 



June 9, 2015 

27 

2015, seeking approval of Special Use Permit (SUP) #2015-02 to conduct a “public garage.” This 
application was made complete on May 1st upon the County’s receipt of a Minor Site Plan prepared by 
Mr. Steven L. Key, LS, and dated May 14, 2015. 

“Public garage” is defined in Zoning Ordinance Article 2, “Definitions,” as, “A building or portion 
thereof, other than a private garage, designed or used for servicing, repairing, equipping, renting, 
selling, or storing motor-driven vehicles.” 

Please note that this SUP application and accompanying Minor Site Plan are associated with an existing 
commercial facility located on the subject property in Afton. The owner of the subject property, Mr. 
Gary Bryant, currently has an approved, valid Special Use Permit (#97-2) which authorizes the existence 
and operation of a “public garage.” However, in approving SUP #97-2, the Board of Supervisors (BOS) 
attached a condition which restricted the operation of a public garage at that location to Mr. Gary Bryant, 
only. (Please see the enclosed BOS approval with conditions dated May 14, 1997.) Therefore, Mr. 
Donald and Mrs. Cindy Hall are requesting SUP approval to authorize Hall’s Family Auto Clinic, which 
is currently in operation. 

Mr. Padalino then noted the location of the property and showed the subject property on the map. He 
reiterated that the applicants currently had an operating business at the property. He noted that the Minor 
Site Plan submitted was reviewed and there were no outstanding comments or questions. He then 
advised that the Planning Commission had held a public hearing and there were no comments and they 
recommend approval by the Board.  

There being no questions or comments from the Board, Mr. Saunders opened the public hearing and 
there being no persons wishing to be recognized, the public hearing was closed. 

Mr. Harvey then moved to approve Special Use Permit #2015-02 and Mr. Bruguiere seconded the 
motion. There being no further discussion, Supervisors voted unanimously (5-0) by roll call vote to 
approve the motion. 

IV. Other Business (As May Be Presented)

There was no other business considered by the Board. 

V. Adjournment  

At 7:05 PM, Mr. Harvey moved to adjourn and Mr. Hale seconded the motion. There being no further 
discussion, Supervisors voted unanimously by voice vote to approve the motion and the meeting 
adjourned. 



I. Appropriation of Funds (General Fund)

Amount Revenue Account (-) Expenditure Account (+)
290,647.00$    3-100-009999-0001 4-100-091050-9999

20,000.00$      3-100-009999-0001 4-100-093100-9201
310,647.00$    

II. Transfer of Funds (General Fund)

Amount Credit Account (-) Debit Account (+)
26,460.00$      4-100-999000-9905 4-100-091050-7106

5,000.00$        4-100-999000-9905 4-100-091050-7011
31,460.00$         

III. Appropriation of Funds (VPA/Social Services Fund)

Amount Revenue Account (-) Expenditure Account (+)
20,000.00$      3-150-004105-0001 4-150-053110-8111

Adopted: July 14, 2015 Attest:  ______________________, Clerk
Nelson County Board of Supervisors  

            BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of Nelson County that the Fiscal Year 2015-2016 
Budget be hereby amended as follows:

RESOLUTION R2015-54

AMENDMENT OF FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016 BUDGET
NELSON COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

III B



 

I.

II.

 
III. The Appropriation of Funds (VPA/Social Services Fund)  includes the request for 

appropriation  of $20,000 for roof replacement.  

The Transfer of Funds includes a request to transfer from Contingency $26,460 for the paving 
expense at the Gladstone Convenience Center.  This expense was previously authorized by the 
Board.  A transfer from Contingency is also requested for $5,000 to provide the local match to 
the Department of Historic Resources relative to the grant for the South Rockfish Valley 
Historic District nomination.  This expense was previously authorized by the Board on 4/14/15.  
The balance in General Fund Contingency after this request is $1,420,351 of which $1,146,895 
is recurring contingency.

EXPLANATION OF BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Appropriation of Funds (General Fund) includes an appropriation request of $290,647 
for remaining radio project costs.  It was originally anticipated that all expenses for the project 
would be paid in FY15, but the requested amount will be paid in FY16.  This appropriation 
request is offset with carryover funds previously allocated for the project.  Also requested is an 
appropriation of $20,000 for Social Services roof replacement. This request provides for a 
Transfer from the General Fund to the VPA/Social Services Fund. The intent was to pay for this 
expense in FY15, but the contractor was later than anticipated completing the work.  The 
VPA/Social Services Fund is estimated to return about $70,000 in local funds at year end. The 
request is to apply $20,000 of the returned funds to pay for the roof replacement.   



RESOLUTION R2015-55 
NELSON COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

NO TRESSPASSING AT CLAUDIUS CROZET BLUE RIDGE TUNNEL, AFTON 

RESOLVED, by the Nelson County Board of Supervisors that until its completion and 
opening to the public, the Claudius Crozet Blue Ridge Tunnel in Afton shall be posted 
with No Trespassing signs and any persons caught trespassing on the subject posted 
property shall be prosecuted.  

Approved: July 14, 2015 Attest:_________________________, Clerk 
Nelson County Board of Supervisors  

III C



1

Candy McGarry

From: Emily Harper
Sent: Thursday, June 18, 2015 2:11 PM
To: Steve Carter; Candy McGarry
Subject: FW: Tunnel question

 
See the suggestion below 
Emily Harper 
Director 
Nelson County Parks & Recreation 
P.O. Box 442 
Lovingston, VA 22949 
434‐263‐7130 
www.nelsoncounty‐va.gov 
 
 
 

From: Jim McClellan [mailto:Jim@vacoins.org]  
Sent: Monday, June 15, 2015 11:27 AM 
To: Emily Harper 
Subject: RE: Tunnel question 
 
I would suggest the Board of Supervisors pass a resolution that they will prosecute anyone caught trespassing in the 
tunnel.  
 
The sign should simply state “No Trespassing by Order of the Nelson County Board of Supervisors”. This will clearly allow 
the county to prosecute. I think a clearly visible “No Trespassing” sign is all that is needed for us to successfully defend 
the county. A barrier gate would add even more protection as it become even clearer and the sign could be mounted to 
it. I think a barrier gate will stop most visitors from venturing into the tunnel whereas a sign might not. 
 
I would put up a separate information sign, probably placed near the parking lot with the progress, phone number, etc. I 
think you want the No Trespassing sign to be clear and not get buried in other details. 
 
 
 
 
 

From: Emily Harper [mailto:eharper@nelsoncounty.org]  
Sent: Monday, June 15, 2015 10:51 AM 
To: Jim McClellan 
Subject: Tunnel question 
 
Jim, 
Nelson County has completed Phase I of the Blue Ridge Tunnel. This includes a parking lot and the  trail to the east portal 
of the Tunnel. We hope to begin Phase II in a few months. The Tunnel will not be open, including Phase I, until all Phases 
are completed. We are trying to word a No Trespassing sign, would you please review the following & tell me if it says 
enough or too much, different wording?  
 



2

NO TRESPASSING 
The Claudius Crozet Blue Ridge Tunnel is not open to the public. 
Trespassers will be prosecuted. 
Security includes camera surveillance.  (maybe??)  
For questions or comments please call XXXXX 
 
We are going to put a “thermometer” on the sign showing the progress of construction. We expect another 1-2 years of 
construction at least.   
 
What do you think?  
 
Thanks 
 
Emily Harper 
Director 
Nelson County Parks & Recreation 
P.O. Box 442 
Lovingston, VA 22949 
434‐263‐7130 
www.nelsoncounty‐va.gov 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION R2015-56 
NELSON COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

AGRICULTURAL & FORESTAL DISTRICT PROGRAM ADMINISTRATOR 

RESOLVED, by the Nelson County Board of Supervisors that pursuant to Chapter 9, 
Planning and Zoning, Article V. Agricultural and Forestal Districts of the Code of Nelson 
County, the Director of Planning and Zoning is hereby appointed as Program 
Administrator of the Agricultural and Forestal Districts Program.  

Approved: July 14, 2015 Attest:_________________________, Clerk 
Nelson County Board of Supervisors  

III D







RESOLUTION R2015-62 
NELSON COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

CONSENT FOR OFFERS IN COMPROMISE – LOCAL TAXES 
OUTSTANDING SERVICE DISTRICT (STREET LIGHT) TAX OBLIGATIONS 

WHEREAS, the Nelson County Board of Supervisors (the Board) enacted on July 13, 1999 a 
local ordinance establishing “Service Districts” within the provisions of the Code of the County 
of Nelson, Virginia (the Code) to provide for the administration, including taxation, within three 
specified Service Districts of a street lighting program; and, 

WHEREAS, by Ordinance O2008-02 approved on April 24, 2008,  the Board repealed the 
Service District provisions established in the Code at Chapter 9.5; and,   

WHEREAS, the repeal of the Service District program resulted in the placement of liens against 
those properties that had outstanding tax obligations pursuant to the Service District program; 
and, 

WHEREAS, the Board wishes to provide its consent, pursuant to §58.1-3994 (Offers in 
compromise with respect to local taxes) of the Code of Virginia, 1950 to the Treasurer of Nelson 
County (the Treasurer) to provide for “compromise and settlement” of the outstanding Service 
District tax obligations in accordance with the provisions of §58.1-3994, as said Treasurer of the 
County may complete.   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Nelson County Board of Supervisors that 
said Board hereby provides its consent, pursuant to the provisions of  §58.1-3994 of the Code of 
Virginia. 1950, to the Treasurer of Nelson County to enable the Treasurer to compromise and 
settle, as determined by said Treasurer,  the outstanding tax obligations resulting from the now 
repealed Service District Ordinance and the Street Light program that was established and 
administered pursuant to said Service District Ordinance. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board  herewith provides authority to the County 
Administrator, as its designee pursuant to §58.1-3994, to consent on behalf of the Board, as may 
be necessary, to such compromise and settlement as is facilitated by the Treasurer. 

LASTELY, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board’s consent, as herewith provided pursuant to 
§58.1-3994 of the Code of Virginia 1950, is and shall be limited to the outstanding tax
obligations owed to Nelson County that are a result of the repealed Service District Ordinance 
and Street Light program. 

Approved:  July 14, 2015 Attest:  ______________________________, Clerk 
Nelson County Board of Supervisors 

III E





RESOLUTION R2015-57 
NELSON COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

DISCONTINUANCE OF PORTIONS OF ROUTE 641 DUTCH CREEK LANE 

WHEREAS, the Virginia Department of Transportation has provided this Board with a sketch 
dated June 22, 2015 and VDOT Form AM-4.3, which is hereby incorporated herein by reference, 
defines adjustments required in the secondary system of state highways as a result of the 
proposed discontinuances, and 

WHEREAS, the portions of Route 641 (Dutch Creek Lane)  to be discontinued are deemed to 
no longer serve public convenience warranting maintenance at public expense, and 

WHEREAS, a public notice was posted and registered letters, as prescribed under §33.2-908, 
Code of Virginia, were sent to each landowner whose property abuts the section of highway to 
be discontinued, and 

WHEREAS, the Commissioner of the Virginia Department of Transportation was provided the 
prescribed notice of this Board's request to discontinue the subject sections of road, and 

WHEREAS, no public hearing was requested; and 

WHEREAS, after considering all evidence available, the Nelson County Board of Supervisors is 
satisfied that the described sections of road to be discontinued no longer serves public 
convenience warranting maintenance at public expense and are no longer necessary as a part of 
the Secondary System of State Highways;  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED this Board concurs with the discontinuance as part 
of the Secondary System of State Highways, those portions of road identified by the sketch dated 
June 22, 2015 and Form AM-4.3 to be discontinued, and hereby requests the Virginia 
Department of Transportation to take the necessary action to discontinue those identified 
segments as part of the Secondary System of State Highways, pursuant to §33.2-908, Code of 
Virginia, and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a certified copy of this resolution be forwarded to the 
Resident Engineer for the Virginia Department of Transportation. 

Adopted: ______________, 2015 Attest: _________________________, Clerk 
Nelson County Board of Supervisors 

IV B 1.



Street Name and/or Route Number

 Dutch Creek Lane,   State Route Number 641

Old Route Number: 0

 From: 3.57 Mi. North of Route 640 (Node D)

    To: 2.72 Mi. North of Route 640 (Node E), a distance of: 0.85 miles.

Street Name and/or Route Number

 Dutch Creek Lane,   State Route Number 641

Old Route Number: 0

 From: 0.96 Mi. East of Route 29 (Node B)

    To: 1.03 Mi. East of Route 29 (Node C), a distance of: 0.07 miles.

Project/Subdivision   Rte 641 Dutch Creek Lane - 
Discontinuance

Type Change to the Secondary System of State Highways: Discontinuance

The Virginia Department of Transportation is requested to discontinue the following portions of the Secondary 
System of State Highways:

Reason for Change:

Pursuant to Code of Virginia Statute:

Non-Project

§33.2-908

Report of Changes in the Secondary System of State Highways

A Copy Testee Signed (County Official): ____________________________________________

The following VDOT Form AM-4.3 is hereby attached and incorporated as part of the governing body's resolution for 
changes in the secondary system of state highways.

By resolution of the governing body adopted July 14,  2015

In the County of Nelson

VDOT Form AM-4.3 (4/20/2007)  Maintenance Division

Date of Resolution: July 14,  2015  Page 1 of 1



jefferyb.kessler
Text Box
 ROUTE 641 (DUTCH CREEK LANE) - NELSON COUNTY                               DISCONTINUANCE

jefferyb.kessler
Text Box
PREVIOUSLY ABANDONED SECTION OF ROAD

jefferyb.kessler
Text Box
SKETCH DATED: JUNE 22, 2015



Page 19 

Deletions of Public Facilities from the Secondary System of State Highways 

This document uses the terms road and street interchangeably, but these terms should be considered to 

include rail crossings, causeways, bridges, wharves, and landings as part of the secondary system of state 

highways (ref. §33.2-324 of the Code of Virginia). 

Roads, including these facilities, are removed from the “secondary system of state highways” by formal 

legal actions of: 

• Discontinuance (§33.2-908 of the Code of Virginia), an action limited to the CTB, and

• Abandonment (§33.2-909 of the Code of Virginia), an action limited to the Board of Supervisors

• Abandonment (§33.2-912 of the Code of Virginia), an action based on a project relocation and

action by the Commissioner.

Secondary Discontinuance (Sample Resolutions 13 & 14) 

Discontinuance is an act reserved the Commonwealth Transportation Board or the Commissioner (if 

because of a project relocation), pursuant to §33.2-908, Code of Virginia.  It is the result of a 

determination that a facility no longer provides a sufficient public service to warrant maintenance at state 

expense.  The facility remains a public facility and its operational jurisdiction is returned to local road 

officials, usually the local governing body of the locality.  The powers and procedures for subsequent 

abandonment of a facility discontinued from the secondary system of state highways rests with the Board 

of Supervisors and the procedures for such actions are set out under §33.2-915 through §33.2-925 of the 

Code of Virginia. 

Section 33.2-908 of the Code of Virginia, prescribes certain steps and required notices, outlined in the 

following “Discontinuance Procedures Flow Chart,” necessary to discontinue a road or other public 

facility that is not an approved project relocation.  Any appeal of the findings of the CTB shall be to the 

circuit court of the county and conform to §33.2-905 of the Code of Virginia.  

Certain administrative actions and forms are required to process a discontinuance.  These are listed in 

“Administrative Actions Matrix for Abandonment, Discontinuances and Project Adjustments” included in 

Table 4. 



Page 20 

Chart 3 

Discontinuance Procedures Flow Chart 

� Has VDOT received a petition from the BOS/Town Council (LGB)
requesting a segment of road be discontinued as part of the 
Secondary System of State Highways

AND/OR

� Has the CTB made a motion to discontinue a segment of road as part
of the Secondary System of State Highways that it deems is no longer
necessary for public convenience?

VDOT issues notice of intent to discontinue maintenance of the road and a
willingness to hold a Public Hearing at least 30 days prior to the effective
date of the discontinuance by:

 (a)   Concurring in LGB’s request or by giving the LGB notice of VDOT’s
intent to discontinue maintenance. 

 (b)  Publishing notice of intent to discontinue maintenance.  *

 (c)  Advising all abutting land owners by registered letter.  *

 *  However, this action is not required when the action results from the
construction of a new road that serves the same land owners as 
served by the old road. 

Has a petition for a public hearing been filed
with the CTB by the LGB or abutting land owner(s)?

Resident/District staff prepares a discontinuance assembly

and forwards it to the Highway System Group, including:

� Public Hearing Transcript, if a hearing was held.

� Comments and recommendation of appropriate action.

� Copy of petitions by LGB and/or abutting land owners.

� Completed DACHS Forms.

� Sketch or map showing the section of road and
mileage discontinued. 

� Any and all other pertinent information.

Highway System Group reviews the assembly, assures
prescribed procedures are met and processes the
assembly for appropriate action by the CTB, which may,
from its findings:

� Discontinue the section from the Secondary System

� Dismiss the motion for discontinuance, OR

� Take other appropriate action.

The LGB and VDOT staff are notified of the action 
taken by the CTB and VDOT’s Official records are 
revised accordingly.

The Commonwealth Transportation Board is the sole 
entity vested with the power to discontinue a road and, 
unless it concurs that a road is not needed for public

convenience, the road continues as a part of the 
Secondary System. Project related changes are  
approved by the Commissioner and Chief Engineer.

Yes

No

No

VDOT conducts a hearing in the jurisdictional location of the
road, providing at least w 30 days notice of the time and place by:

� Notifying LGB
� Publishing notice in the local newspaper 

Yes



RESOLUTION R2015-58 
NELSON COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

AUTHORIZATION TO ISSUE INVITATION TO BID FOR COURTHOUSE 
PROJECT PHASE II AND TO APPLY TO  

VIRGINIA RESOURCES AUTHORITY FOR PROJECT FUNDING 

RESOLVED, by the Nelson County Board of Supervisors that authorization is hereby 
granted to the County Administrator to proceed with issuing an invitation to bid for the 
project known as the Courthouse Project, Phase II and; 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the County Administrator is hereby authorized to 
proceed with submitting a funding application to the Virginia Resources Authority for 
financing of an amount up to $7,500,000 Dollars for completion of the Courthouse 
Project, Phase II. 

Approved: July 14, 2015 Attest:_________________________, Clerk 
Nelson County Board of Supervisors  

V A



V B 



RESOLUTION R2015-59 
NELSON COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

AUTHORIZATION TO APPLY FOR DEPARTMENT OF CONSERVATION  
AND RECREATION RECREATIONAL TRAILS PROGRAM GRANT FUNDS  

FOR BLUE RIDGE TUNNEL PROJECT 

Recreational Trails Program Authorizing Resolution A resolution authorizing application(s) for 
federal funding assistance from the Recreational Trails Program (RTP)  to the Virginia 
Department of Conservation & Recreation (DCR).  

WHEREAS, under the provisions of RTPF, federal funding assistance is requested to aid in 
financing the cost of trail/trailhead/trailside construction and/or rehabilitation within Nelson 
County; and  

WHEREAS, Nelson County considers it in the best public interest to complete the project 
described in the RTP application;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that:  

1. The County Administrator be authorized to make formal application to DCR for
funding assistance;

2. Any fund assistance received be used for implementation and completion of trail and
trailside construction of the Blue Ridge Claudius Crozet Tunnel within the specified
time frame;

3. The Board of Supervisors hereby certifies that project funding is  currently available
and is committed for the completion of this project while seeking periodic
reimbursement through the Recreational Trails Program;

4. We are aware that the RTP funding, if approved, will be paid on a reimbursement basis.
This means we may only request payment after eligible and allowable costs have
already been paid to our vendors and evidence of such has been provided to DCR.

5. We acknowledge that the assisted trail project will have an assigned life expectancy
assigned to it and that the facility must be maintained to standards suitable for public
use.



6. We acknowledge that we are responsible for compliance with the National
Environmental Policy Act, Endangered Species Act, Historic Preservation Act,
Executive Orders 11988 and 11990 (Floodplain Management and Wetlands Protection)
and all other applicable state and federal laws;

7. We acknowledge that appropriate opportunity for public comment will be provided on
this application and evidence of such is a required component for approval;

8. This resolution becomes part of a formal application to the Virginia Department of
Conservation & Recreation.

Adopted: __________, 2015 Attest: ________________________, Clerk 
       Nelson County Board of Supervisors 



GVF&RS  
Board of Directors 

John Dixon 
President 

Vice President 

Secretary 

Leonard Estrada 
Treasurer 

Rev. Herbert Jones 
Chaplain 

Tom Fore 
Amherst County 

Appomattox County 

Robert Carter 
Buckingham County 

Emily Harper 
Nelson County 

Auxiliary Division 

Jeff Taylor 
Fire Division 

Mary Kathryn Allen 
Rescue Division 

Lewis Glover 
Director 

Gladstone Volunteer Fire and Rescue Service 
PO Box 94 

Gladstone, VA  24553 
434-933-8665 

February 7, 2014 

Nelson County Emergency Services Council 
P. O. Box 336 
Lovingston, VA 22949 

Re: Loan Application, Fire Engine for 
Gladstone Volunteer Fire and Rescue Service 
February 7, 2014 

Please accept the attached application for a loan for a new fire 
truck for the GVF&RS. 

Questions may be directed to Jeff Taylor, Chief Fire Division or 
Leonard Estrada, Treasurer, GVF&RS. 

Your approval is requested. 

Sincerely, 

Leonard P. Estrada 
Treasurer 

V C 



Nelson County Emergency Services Council 

Loan Application, Fire Truck for 
Gladstone Volunteer Fire and Rescue Service 

February 7, 2014 

Agency Name: Gladstone Volunteer Fire and Rescue Service 

Agency Address: P. O. Box 94, 8786 Richmond Hwy, Gladstone, VA 24553 

Contact Person(s): Jeff Taylor Leonard Estrada 

Title: Chief, Fire Division Treasurer 

Phone: 434-933-4412 434-933-4386 

Item Requested: Replacement Fire Engine 

Loan Amount: Up to $60,000.00 (To be determined after the third quote is 
received.) 

Anticipated Term:  8 Years 

Down Payment Amount: None 

Replacement Item:  Yes   � No   

If Yes, describe the condition of the item being replaced. 

1996 E-One Engine has been in-service 18 years.  The 
average annual cost of maintenance for the past 5 years is 
$750.  Two of the last three years the maintenance costs 
have exceeded $1,300.  We expect that costs to maintain 
this vehicle in a safe condition  will continue to rise.    

If additional Item how many do you already own? 

One, 1996 E-One Engine 

What will you do with the old item? 

Move the 1996 E-One Engine to be the second-due engine 
for structure fires and be the first-due on motor vehicle 
accidents and Mutual Aid. 



Describe Briefly the scope of your project: 

Upon receipt of all bids, the engine will be selected, the 
necessary grant and loan processes will be completed, the 
engine will be ordered.  We plan to place the engine in 
service as soon as it arrives and is insured and licensed for 
operation. 

Do you intend to make this resource available County-wide? Yes   � No 

What is the Approximate Net Worth of your Agency? 
Real Estate Equity + Vehicle Equity + Cash + Investments. $ 383,535.31 

What is the total debt amount of your organization? $  65,770.03 
(Net Worth and Debt are as of 1/1/2014.) 

How will you support your payment? Community donations. 

Please Attach a Copy of Your Operating and Capital Budget.  
Balance Sheet as of 1/1/2014 and Income and Expense for 2013 are attached. 

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

Approved: Yes � No �

Date Approved: ___________________________________ 

By Print: ___________________________________ 

By Sign: ___________________________________ 



Jan 1, 14

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
11000 · Current Assets

11100 · BB&T Banking
11120 · BB&T Operations 8087 8,613.61
12000 · BB&T Investment 7802 56,676.04
12005 · BB&T Business CD 5428 69,762.66

Total 11100 · BB&T Banking 135,052.31

Total 11000 · Current Assets 135,052.31

Total Checking/Savings 135,052.31

Total Current Assets 135,052.31

Fixed Assets
15000* · Fixed Assets

15100 · Buildings 126,975.00
15200 · Improvements 725.00
15400 · Land 48,900.00
15600 · Vehicles

15620 · Tanker 42 - 06 Seag 7,616.00
15622 · Tanker 45 - 96 Intl 41,071.00
15637 · Squad 43 - 87 Chev 12,321.00
15680 · Rescue 151 - 99 Ford 1,875.00
15690 · Rescue 156 - 04 Ford 9,000.00

Total 15600 · Vehicles 71,883.00

Total 15000* · Fixed Assets 248,483.00

Total Fixed Assets 248,483.00

TOTAL ASSETS 383,535.31

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Credit Cards

20100 · BB&T Visa Credit Card 6.99

Total Credit Cards 6.99

Total Current Liabilities 6.99

Long Term Liabilities
27200 · Other Liabilities

27220 · Loan - Tanker #42 8,889.04
27230 · Loan - Tanker 45 & Squad 43 56,874.00

Total 27200 · Other Liabilities 65,763.04

Total Long Term Liabilities 65,763.04

Total Liabilities 65,770.03

Equity
32000 · Unrestricted Net Assets 317,772.27
Net Income -6.99

Total Equity 317,765.28

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 383,535.31

2:00 PM 2014 - GVF&RS
02/06/14 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of January 1, 2014

Page 1



2013

Gladstone Volunteer Fire and Rescue Service

Income

Fund Raising Donations

Community $8,542.00

Corporate/Church $5,840.00

Memorials/Other $553.53

Community Events $1,402.10

$16,337.63 14.6%

Government

Amherst County $6,126.25 5.5%

Appomattox County $6,000.00 5.3%

Buckingham County $0.00

Nelson County $54,070.09 48.2%

$66,196.34 59.0%

Other Income

Interest $441.02

Grants $19,323.64

Rentals $8,185.00

Misc. $1,775.00

$29,724.66 26.5%

Total Income $112,258.63 100.0%

Expenses

People Training, Uniforms $11,811.63 10.2%

Protective Clothing

Operations Fire & Rescue Equipment $38,112.82 33.1%

Tools and Maintenance

Fuel Propane, Diesel and $8,388.94 7.3%

Gasoline

Facilities Buildings and Grounds $6,015.41 5.2%

Maintenance and Supplies

Administration Insurance, Telephone $17,660.41 15.3%

and Office Supplies

Utilities Electric Service $3,921.94 3.4%

Community Christmas, Halloween $1,636.10 1.4%

Easter, Comm Breakfast

Fund Raising $1,848.81 1.6%

Loan Payments Tanker and Squad Truck $25,903.78 22.5%

Total Expenses $115,299.84 100.0%

Net Income less Expenses -$3,041.21



V C   EMS Loan Fund Information 

 EMS Loan Fund Balance as of June 9, 2015:

o $246,847.55

 Most Recent Loan to Gladstone Volunteer Fire and Rescue Service (Formerly Gladstone
Rescue Squad):

o October 2012 in the amount of:  $65,000

o Outstanding Loan Balance as of July 8th: $44,685.48



RESOLUTION R2015-60 
NELSON COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
APPROVAL OF INTEREST FREE LOAN FOR 

 GLADSTONE VOLUNTEE FIRE AND RESCUE SERVICE 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Nelson County Board of Supervisors hereby approves 
the interest free loan request of $55,518.00 made by Gladstone Volunteer Fire and Rescue Service and 
approved by the Nelson County Emergency Services Council. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that upon the completion of all required loan documentation, 
approved funds shall be disbursed from the EMS Loan Fund by the Treasurer’s Office no later than July 
20, 2015. 

Adopted:  July _________, 2015 Attest: _______________________, Clerk 
 Nelson County Board of Supervisors 



1

1

10 July, 2015  

To: Board of Supervisors 
From: S. Carter, County Administrator 
Re: County Administrator’s Report (July 14, 2015 Meeting)  

1. Courthouse Project Phase II:  The 7-14 Board agenda includes a presentation on the project’s
status from Architectural Partners and an authorizing resolution for the project to be publicly bid 
and for staff to secure bond funding for the project from VRA.  

2. Broadband:  A) Local Innovation Grant Project:  Receipt of the project contract document
from VA-DHCD is in process and, thereafter, the project will proceed to construction.  B) VA 
Technology Planning Initiative –The County was not selected to submit a final funding 
application (a debriefing with VA-DHCD can be conducted).  As an alternative, County staff 
have requested the Department’s input on use of the VTPI submittal for the agency’s annual 
planning grant program (maximum of $30,000 can be awarded). C) Broadband Strategic Plan: 
Staff will begin development of this project in the month of July. 

3. BR Tunnel:  A regional meeting, including participation was held on 7-8 at the Rockfish
Valley Vol. Fire & Rescue Department.  The purpose of the meeting was to discuss the means to 
provide for overall completion of the project.   The meeting’s outcomes will provide for 
consolidation of Phase 2 and Phase 3 grant funding to provide for restoration of the Tunnel, 
leaving Phase 3 (western trail and parking lot) as the last element for Project Completion. 

4. Lovingston Health Care Center:   The Citizen’s Committee is continuing to meet.  Region
Ten has submitted a purchase proposal and Piedmont Housing Alliance will be scheduled to tour 
the Center the week of 7-13 or 7-20.  One of two private companies that have recently toured the 
Center has withdrawn from any interest in the project.  Medical Facilities of America will close 
its operation of the Center in the ensuing several months. 

5. Radio Project:  County staff met with Motorola and Clear Communication on 6-24 to discuss
next steps in addressing concerns/issues with coverage areas, radio and pager use.  A follow up 
meeting will be conducted in late July to receive Motorola’s recommendations, which may result 
in a Phase 2 Project. 

6. CDBG Grant Application for Sewer Line Extension:  An application to VA-DHCD has
not, to date, been completed.  A meeting with the Department has been requested to discuss the 
project and grant specific criteria to enable a stronger application to be submitted.  

7. Solid Waste – A) Tire Amnesty Program:  The County collected 17 tons of tires from the
two weekend amnesty days (6-20 and 27).   B) New Roll Off Truck:  The new roll off truck is 
received and in service. C) Paving Gladstone Collection Site:  Complete. 

8. Capital/Maintenance Programs -   A) County:  Roof replacements at the Montreal Village
Park are completed. Roof replacement and related repairs of the new Maintenance Building will 
begin on 7-13 ($33,000).  Bid quotes have been solicited for initial building repairs to the Nelson 
Memorial Library.  B) DSS:  Roof replacement and building repairs are in process.   

9. Department Reports:  Included with the 7-14-15 BOS agenda.

VI A 1.



July 14, 2015

(1) New Vacancies/Expiring Seats & New Applicants :

Board/Commission Term Expiring Term & Limit Y/N Incumbent Re-appointment Applicant (Order of Pref.)

Local Board of Building Code Appeals 6/30/2016 4 Years/No Limit Clarence Craig N - Resigned Shelby Bruguiere
Barbara Funke

JAUNT Board 9/30/2015 3 Years/No Limit Mercedes Sotura N-Resigned None

Ag & Forestal Dist. Advisory 5/13/2015 4 Years/3 Terms

* See Attached Email Regarding His Appointment Producers * Lee Albright Joyce Burton

Other Landowners Bruce A. Vlk (T2) Y None

Region Ten Community Services Board 6/30/2015 3 Years/3 Terms Michael W. Kelley (T3) NA None
Ineligible

Board of Zoning Appeals 11/9/2018 5 Years/No Limit John Bradshaw Resigned- 6/4/15 Carole Saunders
Deferral of This Appointment Has Been Shelby Bruguiere
Requested by the Chairman

(2) Existing Vacancies:

Board/Commission Terms Expired Term & Limit Y/N Number of Vacancies

VI B



June 30, 2015

Board of Zoning Appeals

Local Board of Building Code Appeals



quite familiar with ordinance and zoning regulations.

of Nelson County.

As a real estate professional and owner of properties in three districts, I am well versed in zoning regulations

I believe my experience and unique perspective can well serve the County and her residents.











1

Candy McGarry

From: Bruce <bvlk77@yahoo.com>
Sent: Wednesday, June 10, 2015 4:29 PM
To: Connie Brennan
Cc: Candy McGarry
Subject: Re: date for next meeting

Hi Connie, 
I just spoke with Anne in the office.  

Bruce 

On Jun 10, 2015, at 1:45 PM, "Connie Brennan" <connie@cstone.net> wrote: 

Great!  Would you let Candy know if you are willing to continue to serve on the AFD Advisory 
Committee? 

From: Bruce [mailto:bvlk77@yahoo.com]  
Sent: Wednesday, June 10, 2015 12:15 PM 
To: Susan McSwain; Bill Halverson; 'Andre Derdeyn'; Andy Wright; Billy Newman; Chapin Wilson; Connie 
Brennan; Jean Payne 
Cc: Tim Padalino 
Subject: Re: date for next meeting 

I plan to attend. 

Bruce Vlk 

From: Susan McSwain <losthorseshoe3@gmail.com> 
To: Bill Halverson <wchal771@cox.net>; 'Andre Derdeyn' <aderdeyn@gmail.com>; Andy Wright 
<dutchcreekfarm@aol.com>; Billy Newman <enviroforllc@netscape.net>; Bruce Vlk 
<bvlk77@yahoo.com>; Chapin Wilson <natureisland@earthlink.net>; Connie Brennan 
<connie@cstone.net>; Jean Payne <jpayne@nelsoncounty.org>; Susan McSwain 
<losthorseshoe3@gmail.com>  
Cc: Tim Padalino <tpadalino@nelsoncounty.org>  
Sent: Monday, June 8, 2015 6:44 PM 
Subject: date for next meeting 

Hello Everyone! 

It appears that the date when the most people can make a meeting of the AFD Advisory 
Committee is June 29, a Monday, at 4 p.m. 

We will meet in the old BOS room in the Court House, just as before. 

Applications will be emailed to you later this week so that you can review them ahead of 
time. 

Great to see so much interest in AFDs! 



1

Candy McGarry

From: Paulette & Lee Albright <britemtn2013@gmail.com>
Sent: Wednesday, June 24, 2015 12:45 PM
To: Candy McGarry
Subject: AFD advisory board

Candy, 
I wish to clarify my “acceptance” to be on the AFD Board for another term.  I am willing to 
serve only if you are not able to find another interested party.  It is my understanding that 
there are other applicants and so I prefer not to be reappointed.  My wife left a phone 
message to that effect while you were out of the office last week.  I apologize if my intent 
was not clear, but I do feel that the Board would benefit from a new participant. 
Please, note my correct email address:  britemtn2013@gmail.com 
Lee Albright  







VI C 1.



1

Candy McGarry

From: Steve Carter
Sent: Thursday, June 25, 2015 1:52 PM
To: Robert Browne
Cc: Candy McGarry
Subject: RE: Good County Efforts

Mr. Browne, 

Thank you very much for your input, which is very much appreciated. 

We will put your message on the Board’s 7‐14 meeting agenda (under Correspondence) in accordance with your 
request. 

Best regards, 

Steve 

Stephen A. Carter 
Nelson County Administrator 
P. O. Box 336 
84 Courthouse Square 
Lovingston, VA  22949 
Ph. (434) 263‐7001 
Fx. (434) 263‐7004 

From: Robert Browne [mailto:rlb22201@gmail.com] 
Sent: Thursday, June 25, 2015 11:24 AM 
To: Steve Carter 
Subject: Good County Efforts 

Good morning Mr. Carter. 

I’m writing this message to compliment the Board of Supervisors and our County 
employees on the very well maintained trash collection center at Rockfish Center. 

I’ve seen some collection centers in other counties and they are often a mess.  The 
efforts here are noticed and appreciated. 

Please place this message on the Supervisors’ next agenda as an information item.  

Thanks. 

Robert Browne 
Nellysford, Virginia 
rlb22201@gmail.com 

VI C 2.



July 14, 2015 BOS PUNCH LIST

Directives Member Status Progress/Comments

Directives from November 13, 2014

Continue to CC Mr. Hale on E-mails with Woolpert A. Hale Ongoing

Check Into Getting a Boat Ramp at Nelson Wayside C. Brennan In Process Emily Harper Working On With Rob Campbell

Directives from January 13, 2015

Proceed With Historic Marker Replacement at Nelson Wayside and Colleen Consensus In Process Markers Ordered-At VDOT in 8-9 wks (3/25/15)

Follow Up on Collection Options For The EMS Revenue Recovery Program C. Brennan In Process -90% Staff Reviewing Summary Report

Directives from June 9, 2015

Ask Dominion to Send Shape Files for ACP Routes C.Brennan Complete
Check Noise Ordinance to See if ACP Construction Would be Exempt C.Brennan Complete Construction Exempt 7am to 9pm
Get New BRT Project Engineer and PM Contact Informatin A. Hale Complete
Get New BRT Phase II Estimate Inclusive of All of the Tunnel Work A. Hale Complete

VI D



Page 1 of 8 

To: Chair and Members, Nelson County Board of Supervisors 

From: Tim Padalino | Director | Department of Planning & Zoning 

Date: July 10, 2015 

Subject: Public Hearing for SUP #2015-03 (“Dance Hall”) – Mr. Jose & Mrs. Elpidia Gaona 

Application Summary 

Site Address / 
Location: 

37 Tanbark Plaza / Lovingston / East District 

Tax Parcel(s): #58-A-36 and #58-A-37 … (see maps on pages 4-6) 

Parcel Size: 1.26 acres (total) 

Zoning: Business (B-1) 

Applicant: Mr. Jose Gaona and Mrs. Elpidia Gaona 

Request: Approval of Special Use Permit #2015-03 / application made pursuant to §8-1-3A 
in connection with recently-approved Minor Site Plan #2015-03  

Planning 
Commission: 

Recommendation for approval of SUP #2015-03 (with recommended conditions; 
see page 3) 

• Completed Application Received On: April 24th, 2015

• Mr. Edgar Gaona, representative for (and son of) the applicants, has noted that the SUP application
is seeking County approval to operate a “dance hall” on Friday nights and Saturday nights,
remaining in operation until 2:00AM the following morning(s).

• The requested dance hall would be co-located with “La Michoacana Authentic Mexican Taqueria &
Restaurant” (which is a permissible by-right use, and which received County zoning approval via
Minor Site Plan #2015-03 on May 27th, 2015)

• The application includes documented permission from the property owners: Mr. Joe Lee McLellan
signed the affidavit on the application.

Subject Property Location, Characteristics, and Other Information: 

The subject property is located at the intersection of Main Street and Thomas Nelson Highway. The 
subject property(s) also fronts along a small private road (Tanbark Plaza). The subject property(s), 
comprising a total of 1.26-acres, are located in the Business (B-1) zoning district. The existing 
building was formerly a grocery store and is currently vacant. Please see maps on pages 4-6. 

Evening III A



Page 2 of 8 

Site Plan Review Committee Meeting and Comments: 

Please note that the Planning Commission approved Minor Site Plan #2015-03 for the proposed 
redevelopment of the existing vacant structure, for use as a restaurant. Minor Site Plan #2015-
03 was also re-submitted with this Special Use Permit application, in order to satisfy the 
application requirement contained in §12-3-4-c-1. Since this proposed dance hall would be 
located within the same structure depicted on the approved Major Site Plan #2015-03, and 
since the dance hall would simply utilize the space currently designated as a “private dining 
area,” the approved site plan was determined to be acceptable for this application and did not 
go through the Site Plan Review Committee process a second time.  

However, a summary of the original review comments from the May 13th Site Plan Review 
Committee meeting are included for your reference, in Appendix A. Full-size copies of the 
(approved) Minor Site Plan are available for review in the Planning & Zoning office.  

Remarks from Staff: 

The following are the review comments and recommendations of the Planning & Zoning Director, as 
presented to the Planning Commission at their public hearing for this application.  

Per Zoning Ordinance Article 12, Section 3-2, the following criteria must be evaluated when 
reviewing a request for a Special Use Permit: 

A. The use shall not tend to change the character and established pattern of development of 
the area or community in which it proposes to locate; 

B. The use shall be in harmony with the uses permitted by right in the zoning district and 
shall not affect adversely the use of neighboring property; 

C. The proposed use shall be adequately served by essential public or private services such 
as streets, drainage facilities, fire protection and public or private water and sewer 
facilities; and 

D. The proposed use shall not result in the destruction, loss or damage of any feature 
determined to be of significant ecological, scenic or historic importance. 

The opinion of Staff is that the proposed “Dance Hall” use, as proposed in the application materials 
for SUP #2015-03 and as depicted on Minor Site Plan #2015-03, seems to be satisfactory relative to 
evaluation criteria C and D. However, the proposed use appears to be questionable with respect to 
evaluation criteria A (“shall not change the community character”) and evaluation criteria B (“shall be 
in harmony with by-right uses and shall not affect adversely the use of neighboring property”).   

Specifically, the applicant has requested County approval to operate the proposed “dance hall” on 
Friday nights and Saturday nights, remaining in operation until 2:00AM the following morning(s). 
This particular proposed “dance hall” use, combined with the proposed pattern of operations, could: 

 Potentially alter the character of the village of Lovingston; and/or
 Potentially be unharmonious with proximal by-right uses (including the multi-family dwelling

units in the Residential (R-2) zoning district); and/or
 Potentially affect adversely the use of neighboring properties, including residential district

properties.



Page 3 of 8 
 

Because downtown Lovingston – which is officially designated as a Historic District – is relatively 
quiet in the evenings and at night, and because the village of Lovingston is substantially residential in 
nature, the County must give careful attention to operational issues (and potential public nuisances) 
related to project details such as the noise from amplified music, increased vehicular traffic, and 
increased social / recreational activities during late night hours (and/or early morning hours) within 
the village of Lovingston.  
 
With respect to those concerns associated with the evaluation criteria, and with respect to the details 
of the “dance hall” proposal as provided by the applicant, Staff cannot recommend a straight approval 
of SUP #2015-03. Instead, staff recommends approval for the “dance hall” special use with some 
combination of the following conditions, subject to the Board of Supervisors’ review and 
determination: 
 

- Approval is conditional upon the applicant documenting a strategy for ensuring that the Nelson 
County Noise Control Ordinance is complied with, that the Nelson County Sherriff’s Office 
reviews and endorses said strategy, and that such strategy for compliance is implemented and 
maintained; 

- Approval is conditional upon Dance Hall operations being permitted no later than 11:00PM on 
any night of operation; 

- Approval is conditional for 18 months from the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, at which 
time the SUP will be reviewed at public hearing in order for the Board of Supervisors to 
determine if the SUP will continue or be revoked (pursuant to §12-3-8).  

 
Planning Commission Review and Public Hearing: 
 
On June 24th, the Planning Commission conducted a review and public hearing for this SUP 
application. Members of the public spoke in favor of the application, while also acknowledging and 
discussing the potential concerns associated with a dance hall. Please reference the meeting 
minutes for detailed information regarding public comments made at the public hearing.  

After closing the public hearing, the Planning Commission spent time deliberating whether or not 
to recommend conditions, such as limiting the dance hall to only one night per weekend instead of 
two, or limiting the hours of operation to 11:00 PM or 12:00 midnight (instead of 2:00 AM as 
proposed). After not reaching any consensus on those issues of discussion, the PC passed the 
following motion:  

Commissioner Goad moves that the Planning Commission recommend approval to 
Special Use application #2015-03 “Dance Hall” by Mr. Jose and Mrs. Elpidia Gaona, 
and impose the conditions that were included in the application, along with the 
condition that the Special Use Permit be specific to the Gaona’s lease at the business. 
Commissioner Harman provided a second; the vote 3-0 with Mr. Saunders abstaining.  

Please note: The language in the motion about “conditions that were included in the application” 
refers to the operational details provided in Note 8 on the Minor Site Plan, which state that the 
dance hall would be in operation on Friday and Saturday nights, remaining in operation until 2:00 
AM the following mornings.  
 
In conclusion, please contact me with any questions, concerns, or requests for assistance leading up 
to the July 14th Board of Supervisors public hearing for Special Use Permit #2015-03 for “Dance 
Hall.” Thank you very much for your time and attention to this application.  



Pa
ge

 4
 o

f 8
 



Pa
ge

 5
 o

f 8
 

 

 



Pa
ge

 6
 o

f 8
 

 

 



Page 7 of 8 
 

Appendix A: 
Summary of review comments from the May 13th Site Plan Review Committee meeting 

 
• Director of Planning & Zoning: 

− The Minor Site Plan is being reviewed for a proposed restaurant, which is a permissible by-
right use. However, an approved site plan is required for a by-right land use in the Business 
District per §8-5 and §13-1-1.  

− The proposed renovation and reuse would include 3,150 SF of restaurant area; 1,080 SF of 
food prep area; and 2,260 SF of private dining area as an accessory to the restaurant use.  

 Note: The 2,260 SF private dining area would eventually be utilized as a dance 
hall, pending County review of Special Use Permit #2015-03.  

− 48 parking spaces, including dedicated handicap parking spaces, would be available. There 
are no minimum parking requirements per §12-7-3.  

− There is “minimal land disturbance” proposed for the installation of a dumpster and solid 
fence beside the existing greenhouse. Please see Notes 9, 10, and 11 on the site plan.   

− Details for exterior lighting and signage include the following: 
 The existing sign structure in the western corner of the property will be reused for 

a new “La Michoacana” sign.  
 The existing “SUPERMARKET” sign on the end of the building (facing Main 

Street) will be removed and eventually replaced by lettering for “La Michoacana.” 
 An additional 24 SF sign is proposed over the entrance to the restaurant near the 

northern end of the building.  
 The existing light poles will be reused and outfitted with LED light fixtures. One 

existing pole will be moved slightly to avoid conflict with an existing canopy tree; 
it will also be outfitted with an LED light fixture.  
 Two new light poles with LED lighting fixtures are proposed in the parking lot 

along the frontage of Main Street. 
 Several LED light fixtures are proposed for the existing building, some of which 

would replace existing lights that are inefficient and which currently cast glare out 
from the building.  

 
• VDOT: Mr. Jeff Kessler had extremely brief review comments, and did not have any requirements 

or requests regarding the proposed use. 
 

• TJSWCD: Mrs. Alyson Sappington of the Thomas Jefferson Soil & Water Conservation District did 
not attend the meeting and did not provide review comments, as no new development or surface 
disturbance was being proposed at the time of her original review.  

 Update: The installation of a dumpster and solid fence beside the existing 
greenhouse would require “minimal land disturbance.” Please see Note 11 on the 
site plan.   

 
• VDH: Mr. Tom Eick of the Nelson County Health Department noted that a food license permit 

would need to be obtained, and the pertinent applications were provided to Mr. Edgar Gaona 
during the meeting. Mr. Eick noted that VDH has no required minimum number of commodes, 
but hand sink requirements will need to be met.  

 
• Nelson County Service Authority: Mr. George Miller noted the following: 

− The existing 4” gravity sewer line would be adequate.  



Page 8 of 8 
 

− The existing 1” water meter for this business would probably not be a problem, either – but 
it ultimately depends on the floor plan and building uses, regarding the “fixture count” of 
total number of sinks, commodes, etc.  

− A cross-connection and back-flow prevention device would need to be installed on the water 
line.  

− A grease arrester (trap) would need to be installed on the sewer line. He recommended the 
installation of a 40-gallon grease trap under the sink, but noted that an underground tank 
might potentially be required depending on the performance of the smaller grease trap 
under the sink(s).  

 
• Nelson County Building Code Official: Mr. David Thompson provided written review comments: 

− “Asbestos certification for any permit application is required from the owner of the building 
for any renovations.”  

− “A permit application is required for a change of use group (M) to a use group (A-2) with 
plans drawn by a registered design professional licensed by the Commonwealth of Virginia. 
The application must be submitted to the Building Inspections Department for the required 
permits prior to any alterations / renovations / changes, etc. for the A-2 use group.”  

− “Final inspections and a certificate of occupancy for a restaurant / dance hall must be 
obtained from the Nelson County Inspections Department for the existing building prior to 
opening or operations for private or public use of the occupancy classification.”  
 

• Planning Commission Representative: Commissioner Russell inquired about the location of the 
dumpster and the method by which it would be screened. The approved site plan includes a 
dumpster located beside the existing greenhouse, which would be fully screened by a solid fence. 
The installation of the dumpster pad and fence would require “minimal land disturbance.” Please 
see Note 11 on the site plan.   

 













LEGAL NOTICE 
NELSON COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

PUBLIC HEARING – SUP #2015-03 
 

In accordance with Volume 3A, Title 15.2, Counties, Cities and Towns, of the Code of Virginia, 
1950, as amended, the Nelson County Board of Supervisors hereby gives notice that a Public 
Hearing will start at 7:00 p.m., Tuesday, July 14th in the General District Courtroom on the 
third floor of the Nelson County Courthouse located at 84 Courthouse Square, Lovingston, for 
the following: 

Public Hearing 
 

Special Use Permit #2015-03 – “Dance Hall” / Jose & Elpidia  Gaona  
Consideration of a Special Use Permit application seeking approval to operate a “dance 
hall” pursuant to §8-1-3a of the Zoning Ordinance. Specifically, the applicant wishes to 
operate a dance hall on Friday nights and Saturday nights, remaining in operation until 
2:00AM the following morning(s). The requested dance hall would be co-located with 
“La Michoacana Authentic Mexican Taqueria & Restaurant” (which is a permissible 
by-right use, and which received County zoning approval via Minor Site Plan #2015-03 
on May 27, 2015). The subject property is owned by Mr. Joe Lee McClellan and is 
located in Lovingston at 37 Tanbark Place; it is further identified as Tax Map Parcels 
#58B-A-36 and #58B-A-37 which are zoned Business (B-1). 

 

Copies of the above files are available for review in the Dept. of Planning & Zoning office, 
80 Front Street, Lovingston, Virginia, Monday through Friday, 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. or for 
more information call the Dept. of Planning & Zoning, (434) 263-7090, or toll free at 888-662-
9400, selections 4 and 1. 
 


	Agenda July 14, 2015
	II Resolution R2015-52 Judge Farrar resolution
	III A (1) Resolution R2015-53 Approval of Minutes
	III A (2) Draft Minutes June 9, 2015

	III B (1) Resolution R2015-54 FY16 Budget Amendment
	III C (1) Resolution R2015-55 BRT No Tresspassing
	III C (2) BRT No Trespassing Suggestion from Vaco  Insurance

	III D (1) Resolution R2015-56 AFD Program Administrator
	III D (2) County Code CH 9 Definitions

	III E (1) Resolution R2015-62 Offers in Compromise Local Taxes
	III E (2) Code of Virginia 58.1-3994

	IV B 1. (1) Resolution R2015-57 Discontinuance of a Portion of Route 641 Dutch Creek LN.docx
	IV B 1. (2) Rte 641 Dutch Creek Llane_Discontinuance 07.14.2015_ LA5 ResoAttachment
	IV B 1. (3) Sketch from Rte 641 Resolution Template   Discontinuance_06.22.2015
	IV B 1. (4) AdditionsGuide_Discontinuances_2015

	V A (1) Resolution R2015-58 Courthouse Project Phase II
	V B (2) RTP Program Info
	V B (1) Resolution R2015-59 RTP Application 2015

	V C (1) 20140207 EMSC Loan Application
	V C (2) Gladstone Volunteer Fire and Rescue Services - Loan Fund Information

	V C (3) Resolution R2015-60 Approval of GVFRS Interest Free Loan
	VI A 1 County Administrator's Report
	VI B (1)  Appointments
	VI B (1a) BZA and LBBCA Shelby Bruguiere
	VI B (1a) LBBCA Barbara Funke
	VI B (1aa) BZA Carole Saunders
	VI B (1c) AFD - Lee Albright
	VI B (1d) AFD - Joyce Burton
	VI B (1b) AFD -Bruce Vlk

	VI C (1) R. Matuzak Correspondence
	VI C (2) Browne Correspondence
	VI D (1) Directives -BOS Punch List July 2015
	Evening III A (1) Staff Report - SUP #2015-03 Dance Hall
	Evening III A (2) BOS PH Notice SUP #2015-03 Dance Hall














Nelson County Inspections Department  
Building Official Monthly Report – June 2015 
 
    
                                             June 2015              June 2014                 June 2013  
PERMITS ISSUED                           49                           73                              64  
Fees collected              $         7,184.00       $     10,970.00           $     10,952.00  
Value of work                $ 1,306,066.00      $ 1,675,078.00           $ 3,814,545.00 
June Inspections     191                        
 
 
Total Permits by District 
DISTRICT                       MTH          YTD 
Lovingston                          4              70 
Rockfish                            14            146 
Schuyler                              2             17  
Massies Mill                        1              36 
Invalid District          1               1                  
Final Totals                       22            270 
 
PERMITS ISSUED            2015                2014                 2013         
Month – June 
Addendum or Renewal         0           0             0 
Building                               22                   31                      23 
Demolition                       0                     1                        1 
E & S                                   1            6                        5 
Electrical                               9         21                      17 
Farm Building/Structure        6                     1                        0 
Mechanical                           7                      8            16 
Plumbing                       4             5                        2 
UST (Tank)                           0                     0                        0                                                                 
TOTALS                              49                    73                     64    
Fees Collected       $ 7,184.00     $ 10,970.00      $ 10,952.00 
 
 
Permit Summary                          Permits Issued             Value          Fees Collected  
July 1, 2014 / June 30, 2015              789              $    26,403,363          $ 149,608      
July 1, 2013 / June 30, 2014             771              $    21,836,899          $ 122,514 
July 1, 2012 / June 30, 2013              795          $    26,475,710          $ 137,032  
  
 


Prepared by: DThompson 7/1/2015 


*Note - Farm Building/Structures are exempt from the USBC unless constructed in the floodplain (Quantity) shown for 


information & processing purposes only. 






Status Report for Jaime D. Miller

For the month of June 2015 


Dispatch:

· Created and maintained the dispatched schedule.  Several vacation requests, sick leave, and employees who had use or lose vacation time made it necessary to alter shifts to assure optimal coverage; as well as using myself to cover shifts when needed.

· Assisted with several technical questions from dispatch after hours. 

· Continued the In-House training program, June’s focus was on Heat and Summer Emergencies and was presented by SCO Adkins.

Emergency Services Coordinator

· I continued working on the Advanced Professional Certificate through the FEMA, self-study program for Emergency Managers.

· Answered several after-hours calls that were able to be handled by phone.

· Completed the annual LCAR reporting.


· Continued to work on a few minor issues related to the radio system with Susan Rorrer.


Revenue Recovery

· Maintained the database for rescue calls for service. 


· I promptly released all calls in the VPHIB system to the billing company.


July 6, 2015

Nelson County Board of Supervisors:


Tax collections for the month of  June 2015 are as follows:

1994-2015      Real Estate                     $4,837,411.17

2008-2015       Personal Property          $1,117,158.67  

Penalties and Interest (for all taxes)        $31,708.68

118 DMV Stops Removed

Respectfully Submitted,       

Angela F. Johnson, Treasurer




Page 1 of 6 
 


 Monthly Report: June 2015  
Department of Planning & Zoning 


 


Note: Items in red indicate a new item or an update on an existing item. 
 


 
 


A. CURRENT DEVELOPMENT REVIEW(S): 
 


Please contact Department staff for more detailed information on any of these items.  
 
 
Public Hearing Items: Rezonings, Special Use Permits, etc.    


 
• AFD Application #2015-05: 


− Received on May 26th from Mr. Michael Scelzi.  
− Application to expand the existing Davis Creek AFD:  


 One (1) additional parcel totaling 165 acres 
− AFD Advisory Committee convened on June 29 and voted to recommend approval of 


this proposed addition 
− Application (and Advisory Committee recommendation) will be introduced to the PC 


on July 22 agenda 
 


• AFD Application #2015-06: 
− Received on June 1st from Ms. Joyce Burton. 
− Application to expand the existing Greenfield AFD: 


 Five (5) additional parcels totaling 258 acres 
− AFD Advisory Committee convened on June 29 and voted to recommend approval of 


this proposed addition 
− Application (and Advisory Committee recommendation) will be introduced to the PC 


on July 22 agenda 
 


• Rezoning #2015-01: Mountain Sports Retail Space (Kober) 
− Application withdrawn; submitted new app for Conditional Rezoning (see below) 


 
• Communication Tower Permit #2015-01 (Class C): AT&T 


− The applicant has not submitted any new application materials, and has not 
advertised for (or conducted) a balloon test, since the previous monthly report.  


 
• Special Use Permit #2015-02: Hall’s Family Auto Clinic (Hall) 


− Approved by BOS on June 9th. 
 
 
 







Page 2 of 6 
 


• Special Use Permit #2015-03: Dance Hall (Gaona) 
− A Minor Site Plan for the reuse of this property for “La Michoacana Restaurant” was 


approved by the PC on May 27th.  
− PC conducted a public hearing on June 24th and voted 3-0 (with 1 abstention) to 


recommend approval to the BOS. 
− A BOS public hearing has been advertised for the July 14th meeting.  


 
• Special Use Permit #2015-04: Brewery (Phillips) 


− Mr. Frederick Phillips submitted a SUP application to convert the vacant grocery store 
at 2188 Rockfish Valley Highway into a brewery, which is permissible as a special use 
in the Business (B-1) District per Z.O. 8-1-12a 


− SUP app submitted with Minor Site Plan prepared by Mr. Morris Foster, LS 
− Subject property is Tax Map Parcel #21-5-1C; it is a 3.23-acre parcel zoned B-1  
− To be reviewed by Site Plan Review Committee on July 8th  
− PC review and public hearing tentatively scheduled for August 26th  


 
• Special Use Permit #2015-05: Motel (Evans) 


− Mr. Bill & Mrs. Becky Evans submitted a SUP application to develop unimproved land 
on Beech Grove Road for use as short-term overnight lodging in cabins, which is 
permissible as a special use in the Agricultural (A-1) District per Z.O. 4-1-25a 


− SUP app submitted with Minor Site Plan prepared by Mr. David Collins, LS, PE 
− Subject property is Tax Map Parcel #31-A-39A; it is a 4.99-acre parcel zoned A-1 
− To be reviewed by Site Plan Review Committee on July 8th  
− PC review and public hearing tentatively scheduled for August 26th  


 
• Conditional Rezoning #2015-02: Mountain Sports Retail Space (Kober) 


− Mr. Joseph “Sepp” Kober submitted a SUP application requesting a conditional 
rezoning of two Residential (R-1) parcels in Nellysford to Business (B-1) Conditional.  


− SUP app is accompanied by Minor Site Plan prepared by Ms. Robin L. Meyer 
− Subject property is comprised of Tax Map Parcels #22-A-18 and #22-A-19, which are 


6.06 total acres and which are zoned Residential R-1 (and #18 is also partially overlaid 
with Floodplain zoning) 


− Reviewed by Site Plan Review Committee on April 8th  
− PC review and public hearing scheduled for July 22nd  


 
PC Reviews – Non-Public Hearing Items: Site Plans, Subdivisions, etc.  
 


− N/A 
  


Board of Zoning Appeals: Variances, Appeals, & Special Use Permits  
 


• Appeal #2015-03 (Shimp, Koon, Schroeder) 
− Mr. Justin Shimp, Mr. Ray and Mrs. Nellie Koon, and Ms. Vanessa Schroeder have 


submitted a petition for appeal to the BZA regarding Zenith Quest International and 
the Industrial (M-2) Zoning District.  


− This appeal is scheduled to be reviewed by the BZA at a public hearing on July 6th.  







Page 3 of 6 
 


• Variance #2015-01 (Tenorio) 
− Ms. Melissa Cash Tenorio is requesting a variance for a nine (9) foot reduction in the 


front yard setback requirements for her property at 866 Fox Hollow Road in Afton.  
− This variance request is scheduled to be reviewed by the BZA at a public hearing on 


July 6th.  
 


Administrative Reviews and Approvals:        
 


• Zoning Determinations (with assistance from County Attorney & County Administration): 
− Temporary Tower Permit #2015-01 (Lockn’ Farm / Verizon) 


 Board of Supervisors approved application on June 9th.  
− Land use classification(s) and permissibility of proposed beverage production facility 


(confidential prospective applicant – existing Nelson County business) 
 See “D. Amendments & Policy Reviews” (below) 


• Plat Approvals:  


 
• Special Events Permits: 


− (Approved): 
− July 4th Parade: July 4th at Front Street, Lovingston 
− 1st Annual Save SK8 Nelson Festival: June 27th at 190 Rockfish School Lane 
 
− (Under Review / Pending): 
− 1st Annual Blue Haven Farm Car & Truck Show: July 11th at 10531 Patrick Henry Hwy. 
− Leon Russell at Locknwood Stage: July 11th at Lockn Farm, 1510 Diggs Mountain 


Road, Arrington 
− Music for the Mountains: July 11th at Devils Backbone Brewpub, 200 Mosby’s Run, 


Roseland 
− 4th Annual Virginia Craft Brewers Festival: August 22nd at Devils Backbone Brewing 


Co & Glen Mary 
− Campsites at Blue Haven Farm: Sept 9th – 13th at 10531 Patrick Henry Hwy 


Tax Map Data 


ID Tax Map # Subdivision Name Acreage Location Date 
Approved 


2253 65-A-104;  
65-A-81 


S.S. Housing, Inc. 3.09;  
237.77 


Rt. 688: 
Saunders Lane 


6/2/2015 


2254 77-A-71 Collie E Johnson, Jr.; Malie 
E Allen; Margaret A 
Johnson; David W 
Johnson; Julia A Grooms; 
Inez E Haynes 


Adding 0.01 acres 
(Boundary Line 
Adjustment) 


Rt. 663: New 
Mount Lane 


6/8/2015 


2255 59-A-1;  
59-A-1A;  
59-A-1B;  
59-A-1C 


Burruss, James R. 
(Manager) 


129.39;  
150.01;  
252.96;  
137.42  
(Boundary Line 
Adjustment) 


Rt. 641: Dutch 
Creek Lane 


6/24/2015 







Page 4 of 6 
 


− Lockn’ Festival: September 10th – 13th at Oak Ridge Estate 
− The Festy Experience: October 8th – 11th at Devils Backbone Brewing Co. & Glen Mary 
− Summer Festival: End of Summer at Silverback Distillery 


 
• New Sign Permits, Temporary Travel Trailer Permits, Wayside Stand Permits, Home 


Occupation Approvals: 
− N/A 


• Other: 
− N/A 


 
 


B. CODE ENFORCEMENT ACTIONS: 
 


Please contact Department staff for more detailed information on any of these items.  
 


• Bryant Paving – Mill Lane, Afton: 
− Notice of Violation letter was sent to Mr. Gary Bryant (property owner) on June 12th  
− Mr. Bryant has communicated that he is preparing application materials for a 


Conditional Rezoning request to rezone the property from Limited Industrial (M-1) to 
Industrial (M-2) Conditional, in an attempt to resolve the zoning violation 
 


• Silverback Distillery – Rockfish Valley Highway, Afton: 
− Notice of Violation letter was sent on June 12th  


 
 


C. LONG RANGE PLANNING: 
 


Please contact Department staff for more detailed information on any of these items.  
 
• Rockfish Valley Area Plan (RVAP): 


− Virtually no available staff time to conduct RVAP project work 
 
 


D. AMENDMENTS & POLICY REVIEWS: 
 


Please contact Department staff for more detailed information on any of these items.  
 


• Zoning Ordinance Article 4. Agricultural (A-1) District: “Special Events” 
− Department staff, County Administration, and County Attorney drafting proposed 


amendments to revise and update Zoning Ordinance provisions for “special events” 
− Draft amendments have been prepared; no new revisions or meetings since April 8th  
 


• Zoning Ordinance Article 4. Agricultural (A-1) District: “Wayside Stands / Off-Farm Sales” 
− Final PC review was conducted on June 24th.  
− PC public hearing has been advertised for July 22nd meeting. 


 







Page 5 of 6 
 


• Zoning Ordinance Article 2. Definitions: “Brewery” Definition 
− Draft amendments were presented to BOS at June 9th meeting and referred to PC via 


Resolution R2015-51. 
− PC reviewed draft amendments at June 26th meeting; at the PC’s request, public 


hearing has been advertised for the July 22nd PC agenda 
 


• Zoning Ordinance Article 2. Definitions: various ‘overnight lodging’ definitions 
− Grant Massie is composing an initial draft of possible amendments for review and 


discussion; that draft language will attempt to more accurately define and regulate all 
types of overnight lodging accommodations, including some which are not currently 
addressed by the ordinance 


− The draft amendments include (but are not limited to) bed and breakfasts; 
campgrounds and “glamping” facilities; cabins and rural retreat centers; and other 
lodging land uses that are frequent subjects of County staff interpretation and 
determination.  
 


• Zoning Ordinance Article 20. Communication Tower Ordinance: “Temporary Towers”  
− Per §20-4 (“Definitions”) and §20-17-B (“Temporary Tower Permit Applications”), the 


installation of temporary towers is limited to a maximum duration 0f 60 days.  
− Preliminary review of this subject indicated that the 60-day duration limit, and the 


100-foot height limit, may be impractical with regards to industry practices 
− Staff have not yet further reviewed this issue or drafted any proposed amendments. 


 
• Zoning Ordinance Article 14. Board of Zoning Appeals: “Variances”  


− The General Assembly recently passed HB 1849 (effective July 1st, 2015) which 
changes the review criteria and legal standards for Variance applications. 


− County staff should review Article 14 to identify any need(s) for amendments, and 
should also review the Variance application form for the same issue(s). 
 


• Zoning Ordinance Article 10. General Floodplain District 
− Staff reports previously sent to County Administration and to PC, regarding review 


procedures and approval authority for Floodplain Development Special Use Permits.  
− County Administrator has separately requested that the existing Floodplain 


Ordinance be evaluated for improvements, inclusive of commentary and 
recommendations provided by DCR staff.  
 
 


E. NOTABLE MEETINGS: 
 


Please contact Department staff for more detailed information on any of these items. 


 
• Pre-application meetings to provide informational guidance: 


− (15th) proposed subdivision (North District) 
− (24th) confidential prospect not yet announced: lodging + restaurant + accessory uses 


(North District) 







Page 6 of 6 
 


− (25th) proposed subdivision and other regulatory / permitting info (South District) 
• Monthly occurrences: 


− (1st) Board of Zoning Appeals 
− (4th) TJPDC Commissioners (DID NOT ATTEND) 
− (9th) Board of Supervisors 
− (16th) TJPDC “Planning & Zoning Committee” (DID NOT ATTEND) 
− (24th) Planning Commission 


• Other: 
− (2nd) Project Intro for Stormwater Grant with TJPDC staff 
− (11th) Vicki Wheaton – Floodplain Ordinance Q&A 
− (22nd) County Attorney re: Zoning Appeal #2015-03 
− (29th) Ag & Forestal District Advisory Committee 






[bookmark: _GoBack]New Business License for June 2015



Water Strategies Consulting LLC

1228 Laurel Springs Drive

RR 1, Box 647

Roseland, VA. 22967

Consulting



U-R-WAY Enterprise

William Karnes

1108 Pounding Branch Rd

Afton, VA. 22920

Lawn care



Nan Rothwell & Carter Smith

The House on Pottery Lane

200 Douglas Ave. Apt 2E

Charlottesville, VA. 22902

Rental House



Joshua C. Lloyd

1272 Laurel Road

Faber, VA. 22938

Landscaping Services



Michelle DeSimone

Majestic Mountain Springs

8646 Rockfish River Rd

Schuyler, VA. 22969

Spring Water bottling














NELSON COUNTY PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT

Phone: 263-7130     Fax: 263-6022    P.O. Box 442 Lovingston, VA 22949

Emily Harper, Director     			           Dustin Johnston, Recreation Technician   

eharper@nelsoncounty.org                                         djohnston@nelsoncounty.org 



June 2015

Meetings

· VA Recreation & Parks Society –Western Service Area 

· CCBRT Foundation 



Marketing

· Sent news releases to the Nelson County Times 

· Nelson County Parks & Recreation Facebook page. 

   

Sports

· [bookmark: _GoBack]Baseball: Games completed. Closing Ceremony  All Star teams were selected for Coach Pitch (7/8), Minor (9-10), & Ozone (11/12) teams. Our teams will compete in the Dixie Youth District 6 Tournament the weekend of July 4th

· Ongoing Registration for Fall Soccer & Baseball

· Men’s Open Gym at RRES



Classes	Most classes are held at the Nelson Center

· Gymnastics   			Beth Morazes		Activity Room   Tues, Wed, Thurs

· Zumba Exercise Class   Leslie Rodgers/Shannon Jordan Great Room   Wed, Th, & Sat 

· Cardio Carma			Rachel ONeill		Great Room	    Mon & Wed

· Ballroom Dance		Lisa Harbin		Great Room	    Monday



Parks & Trails

· Montreal Park – Pavilion & restroom roofs to be replaced

· VBRRT – Planning the 100th anniversary of the VA Blue Ridge Railway. The VBRRT Foundation is bringing the original caboose #2 to the Piney River trailhead. They will raise funds & work to restore it. (Delivered in July 6th) 

· VBRRT- Hosted & provided activities for the Nelson County Schools Summer Enrichment Program (50+ students)

· Hosted a tour of the Tunnel for the VA Natural Resources Institute

· Delfosse Trail 

· Blue Ridge Tunnel – Phase I walk through. 

· Sturt Property – Working with a forestry consultant to evaluate the timber on the site. 

· Spoke with Kelly Pack from the Rails to Trails Conservancy about our VBRRT project & the possibility of trails on the old narrow gauge railroad in the Montebello area.



Special Events 

· Skyline Drive Neighbors Day – set up Nelson County display & greeted visitors at the Byrd Visitors Center




Nelson County Department of Economic Development and Tourism

July 2015 Board of Supervisors Report 



· Working with 7 existing businesses

· Working on an economic impact study of the Lockn’ Festival with Virginia Tourism

· Launched a new Fruit and Orchard Trail – Blue Ridge Fruit Loop

· Assisting with the DHCD broadband grant 

· Working with Greene and Albemarle Counties on a new Antique Trail

· Working with the Central VA Economic Development Partnership on USDA Rural Development Stronger Economies Together (SET) regional economic development plan

· Working with the Charlottesville-Albemarle Convention and Visitors Bureau Crozet visitor center – July 2015

· Working with Planning and Zoning on the Rockfish Valley area plan

· Partnering with Fish Virginia First

· Assisting with Crozet Tunnel foundation 

· Working on Societe 2015 cycling event 

· Working with EDA on tourism and economic development videos

· Working on the new tourism website

· Managing the South Rockfish Rural historic district project

· Continuing Brew Ridge Trail marketing 

· Promoting Virginia Tourism Corporation’s LOVE campaign

· Working on Jefferson Heritage Trail marketing initiative 

· Continuing Monticello Artisan Trail project marketing 

· Promoting Virginia Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services local rural economic development 



Meetings:

June 1 – Blue Ridge Fruit Loop

June 2 – Virginia Economic Development Association

June 3 – Charlottesville EDA

June 4 – Economic Development Authority

June 5 – Lockn’ Festival

June 8 – Crozet Tunnel

June 9 – Virginia Welcome Centers

June 10 – Blue Ridge Medical Center

June 11 – Crozet Tunnel

June 12 – Virginia Department of Agriculture

June 15 – Broadband

June 16 – Crozet Visitor Cetner

June 17 – Nelson 151

June 17 – Central Virginia Economic Development Partnership

June 18 – Crozet Tunnel

June 19 – Brew Ridge Trail

June 22 – Lockn’ Festival

June 23 – Crozet Tunnel

June 24 – Blue Ridge Fruit Loop

June 25 – Broadband

June 25 – Crozet Tunnel

June 26 – Brew Ridge Trail

June 26 – The Festy

June 26 – Lockn’ Festival-Virginia Tourism Corporation

June 26 – Rural Development

June 29 – DRIVE Tourism

[bookmark: _GoBack]June 29 – Virginia Craft Brewers Fest

June 30 – Societe 2015





Montebello Fish Hatchery Visitors Last Month: 475



Tourism Statistics

		June 2015	  Fiscal Year to Date	June 2014	  Fiscal Year to Date

Phone 		801			8127		788			7720

Visitor Center

Traffic		1551			14,653		1501			14,1-7		



		April 2015	Fiscal Year to Date	April 2014	Fiscal Year to Date

Meals Tax	$86,872		861,189			78,993		784,459

Lodging Tax	$25,686		441,041			23,434		327,640









